13th
ANNUAL
REPORT
FOR

THE
YEAR
2022 - 2023

s e e e e R
JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED
A



JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS -

AUDITORS :

REGISTERED OFFICE .

SRI VAIBHAV TANTIA
SRI ARUN KUMAR DOKANIA

ARVS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
SIDDHA WESTON,

9, WESTON STREET, ROOM NO.117
KOLKATA -700013

‘GPT CENTRE’

JC - 25, SECTOR - 111,
SALT LAKE,
KOLKATA - 700 106.



ARVS & Associates

Aattnr e P AGanhi s

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

to the members of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Jogbani Highway Private Limited {"the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as ar March 31, 2023, the statement of profit and loss, Cash Flow
Statement. the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalons financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information { hereinafter
referred to as "the standalone financial statenients”}.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanaiions given to us, the atoresaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended ("the Act”) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
tndia. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for
the vear ended op that date

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards oo Auditing (SAs)
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the "Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
(ICAL) of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to aur audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit ¢pinion on the Standalone
Financial Statements. : '

KEY AUMT MATTERS

ey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audir of the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

We have detremined the matters described below to be key audit matters to be communicated in our report:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Contd.)

Refer Note 18 to the financial statements in respect of "Termination of Concession Agreement ', where in 1t has been
stated that the "Concession Agreement” executed with * National Highway Authority of India {NHAI} for a BOT Project
was terminated by the company mainly due 1o required land not being made available by NHAI in the state of Bihar
under NHDP Phase -ill and invoke the arbitration clause. The Arbitral Tribunal vide their Order passed on 27th
March,2018, awarded Rs.6,120.32 lakh in favour of the conipany,

In view of the said award, the accounts of the cempany been prepared on a going concern basis. However, as a matter
of prudence . the impact of the said award, as well as the claim of the said EPC Contractor Company has not been
accounted for pending outcome of challenge made by NMAI against "the Arbitral Tribunal * to Ron'ble Dethi High
Court, as per The Provisions of The Arbitration and Concilaition Act, 1996,

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The other information
comprises the infermation included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures
to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder's [nformation, but does not
include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements dees not cover the other information and we do not express any
forny of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standatone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
infermation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears 1o be matenially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this sther
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the marters stated in Section 134(5) of the Compantes Act, 2013
(‘the Act’] with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of.the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in ndia, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
aeeounting recordsan accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate nternal financtal controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and prescntation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
geing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporing process.
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AUDITORS'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free fram
materal misstatement, whether due to fraud er error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an avdit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, tndividually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional jucdgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audir, We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and abtain audit evidence that 1s sufficient and
apprapriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as {raud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 0Missions,
misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control,

- Obtain an understanding of internat control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also respongible
for expressing our epinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimaltes and
related disclosures made by management, '

- Conclude on the appropriateness of manageiment’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit cvidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conciusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as 2 going concern,

- Evaiuate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
anct whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation,
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasenably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
“inancial Statements may be influenced. We consider yuanbtative materiality and qualitative factors 1n (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with thoge charged with governance, we detarmine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless Jaw or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be com municated m our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such commumeation,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1 1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government
¢f India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order is attached as separate annexule, to the extent applicable

3

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we reposrt that

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit. '

(b) i our opinion praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those beoks;

{c) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss and dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account;

(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014;

(¢) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Tl — L
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with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controis over financia) reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, same is attached as separate annexure "B"

Wilh respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirement of

section 197{16) of the Act, same is not applicable as no remuneration is provided during the period under
review,

with respect to the other matters to be inctuded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies {Audit and Audrtors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i} The Company has disclosed the impact of pending Lingations on its financial PosItien n ity standalune
financial statements as at 31t March'2023, - Refer Note 18 to the standalone financial statements.

{ii) The Compuny did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there WEra any
material foreseeable losses

15ii) There wese no amounts which were required to be transtorred by the Company to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

i (&) The Management has represented that, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, no funds [which are
'naterial either individually or i the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested {either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
bersen or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ulrimate Beneficiarios*} or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uttimate Benelicia ries:

(b] The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no ands {which are materia!
either individuaily or in the aggregate) have been recejved Ly the Company from any person or entity. including
forelgn entiy ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or gtherwisc, that the
!".m::umny siali, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identitiod in any
manner whatseever by ur on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneticiaries; : :

ft] Based on the audit procedures that have heen c‘nnsi";!ered reasonable and appropriata in the circun1st_ance$,'
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us t¢ believe that the representations qnd‘er sub-clause {i) and (iH)
of Ruie 11[e), zs provided under (a)and (b) above, contain any material misstatement, ’ '

v. As no dividend was declared or paid by the company, requirements of diclosure under Section 123 of The
Companies Act.2013 is not applirable : :
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vi. Proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts] Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicabie to the Company

with effect frem April 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For ARVS & Associates

Firm Registration No. 328008E

Chartered Accountants o

REN Bhajghers T 2la o

Rahul Bhojgharia . ..

Partner EA

Membership Number: 304047-..
Dated: ? 2/05/2023,Kolkata LDIN: 23304047BGWYS]1053
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to the members of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

{a](A} The Company has maintained proper records showing fuil particulars, including
quantitative derails andsiteation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(2}(B) The Company has no intangible asset,

by The property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the vear by the
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, i our
opinion, provides for physical verification ofall the property, plant and equpment at
reasonable intervals. According to the nformation and explanation given to us, no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

¢} The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.
The Company has not taken any immovable property on lease.

-t} The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the vear

ended March 31, 2023.

{&) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or are
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of
Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The company is not dealing in goods or spares nar manufacturing any products, so this
clause is not applicable.

(a) According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not made any investment
in or provide any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partucrship or any
other parties. Accordingly, Clause 3(iti)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

(b} According to information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our

‘examination of the records of the company, the company has not provided any guarantee,

Accordingly, clause 3(iii){b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c} The Company has not granted any loans during the year to companies where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayment or receipts are regular.

td) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loang granted (o
companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are averdue
for more than ninety days

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no lpans or
advance in the nature ofloan granted to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or
extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same

parties.
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to the members of JOGBAN] HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

vi.

Vi

viit.

ift The Company has not granted any loans during the year, either repayable on demand

. or without specifying any terms or peried of repayment.

in eur opinion, and according to the informatian and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of loans granted and investments made. The company has not provided
any guarantee or security to any party falling under section 185 of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records vnder
Section 148(1} of the CompamesAct, 2013,

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing with

“appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,

provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs and other statutory dues applicable to it. Based on audit procedures performed
by us, ne undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable. However, according to the informations and explanation given to us ,
the company has filed appeal against the order u/s 144/147 dated 23/11/2018 of A.Q.
for Assessment Year 2011-12, which has been disclosed in Note 11 to the Standalone
Financial Statements , Other than the ahove . there are no disputed Statutory Dues for the
year under audit,

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded
in the boeks of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, therequirement to report on clause 3(viii} of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

-(a) Based on our audit procedures performed by us and according to the information and

explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender,
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to the members of JOGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Hl.

it

xiii.

) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
Institution or government or any government authority.

) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, there are no term loans during the financial year. Therefore, requirement
to report under this clause is not applicable.

@) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and onan overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds was raised on short- term basis. Therefore, this clause
is not applicable.

fe} The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

fa) The Company has not raised money by way of Initial Public Offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpese af reporting the true and
fair view of thefinancial statements and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company
or on the Company which has been noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been

“informed of any such case by the Management.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12} of Section 1430f the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the cost auditor/
secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT-4 as preseribed under rule 13 of Companics
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year,

{o) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(a)(b}{¢c) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii}{a), (b) & (c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes

to the financial statements, as required by the applicable IND AS.
26
r o v__l
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to the members of [OGBANI HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

Kiv.

Xy

xwi

i

xvifi.

WX,

According to information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, Internal Audit is not mandatory for the company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3{xv) of
the Order is notapplicable to the Company.

(a} & {b} According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not
required to be registered under the provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934} . therefore, these clauses are not applicable to the
company,

(¢} The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made
by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{d) According to the information and explanations provided to us, this clause is not

applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the Company, the company the company has no operation during the
year and also in the preceding financial year. The matter has been mentioned in * Key
Audit Matters” in our Independent Auditor’s Report of the Company.

The previous statutory auditors has resigned during the year. However, outgoing auditor
has not raised any objections, issue or concern.

As mentioned in Note 18 ro the financial statement of the company, in respect of
“Termination of Concession Agreement ', where in it has been stated that the "Concession
Agreement” exccuted with ” National Highway Authority of India (NHAD for a BOT
Project was terminated by the company mainly due to required land not being made
available by NHAI in the state of Bihar under NHDP Phase -1H and invoke the arbitration

“clause. The Arbitral Tribunal vide their Order passed on 27th March.2018, awarded

Rs.6,120.32 lakh in favour of the company. Based on the said award, the accounts iof the
company have been prepared on a geing concern basis, NHAL has chaltenged the Arhitral
award in Hon'ble Delhi High Couwrt. Hon'ble Delhi High Court has directed NHAI to
Deposit Rs, 30.00 Crores as security and give liberty to the company to withdraw Rs.
30.00 Crores against subinission of solvent security. However, the company has not
withdrew the said amount. Hence, pending outcome of decision of Hon'ble Delhi High
Court, we are not in position to ascertain material uncertainty at this stage.

20
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to the members of JOGBAN{ HIGHWAY PRIVATE LIMITED

KX, In our opinien and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, it can he
concluded that Section 135 of The Companies Act, 2013 with respect to Corporate Secial
Responsibility is not applicable to the company. Hence This clause is not applicable to
the company.

xxi  The Company does not have any subsidiary or joint venture. Accordingly, the
reguirement to repert on clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable to the Coempany.

For ARVS & Associates
Firm Registration No, 328008E
Chartered Accountants Loty

‘25\“-"‘ ?}\D\_m\‘\é'“} L -
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Rahul Bhojgharia

Partner
Membership Number: 304047
UDIN: 23304047BCWYS] 1053

Place: Kolkata
Date: 12/05/2023




“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
Financial Statements of Jogbani Highway Private limited

Report on the internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of jogban{ Highway Private

Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on, "the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensu ring the erderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s palicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note ¢n Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of lnternal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls aver financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing precedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financiat controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a materiat weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operaling effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to frand
Or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial conlrols system over fAnancial

reporting

R

—



Meaning of Internal Financiul Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control gver financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generzlly accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the

maintenance of records thae, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company: {2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepred accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and net be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control ever financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

fnour opinion, the Company has, in a1l material respects, an adequate internai financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on, “the internal control over financial reporting
¢riteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India™

For ARVS & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No,328008E
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{Rahul Bhojgharia}

Partner

Membership No.304047
UDIN: 23304047BGWYSJ1053

Place ; Kolkata
Date: 12/05/2023



Jogbani Highway Private Limited

Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039

. Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Note | As at 31st March | As at 31st March
No. 2023 2022 -
I) ASSETS
A) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, plant and equipment 2 23,59 23.59
b} Deferred tax assets 3 90.82 90.28
Total Non-Current Assets (A) 114.41 113.87
B) CURRENT ASSETS
a} Financial assets
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.04 0.03
by Other current assets 5 340,54 342.87
Total Current Assets (B) 340.58 342.90
Total Assets (A+B) 454.99 456,77
IT)EQULITY AND LIABILITIES
C) EQUITY
a) Equity share capital 6 717.00 717.00
b} Other equity 7 (262.18) (260.64)
Total Equity (C) 454.82 456.36
LIABILITIES
D) CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial liabilities
(i} Other financial liabilities 8 0.17 0.43
Total Current Liabilities (D) 0.17 0.41
Total Liabilities (E = D) _ 0.17 0.41
Total Equity and Liabilities (C+E) 454.99 456.77
Summary of significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2023

(Rs, in Lakhs)

Particulars "o | 2022-23 2021 - 22
INCOME
Other income - .
Total Revenue (1) - -
EXPENSES
Other expenses 9 2.08 8.14
Total Expenses (1II) 2.08 8.14
Earnings before finance costs, tax expenses, depreciation (2.08) (8.14)
and amotrtization expenses (EBITDA) (I) — (1I)

Deprecistion and amortization expenses - -
Finance costs - .-
Loss before taxes (II1) (2.08) (8.14)
Tax expenses
- Current tax - -

- Deferred tax expense 3 0.54 2,12
Total tax expenses (1IV) 0.54 2.12
Loss for the year [(III}- (IV)] (1.54) {6.02}
Earnings per equity share (nominal value of share Rs, 10/-
each)

(1)} Basic (Rs.) (0.03) {0.13)
(2) Diluted (Rs.) (0.03) (0.13)
summary of signiﬁcant accountingrpolicies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For ARVS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0328008E
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Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2023

[Particulars

(Rs, in Lakhs)

2022 - 23

2021- 23

A. f

Net Profit before tax
Adjustment for ;
Add: Other expenses
Operating Profit before working capital charges

ing Activiti

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financiat Liabilities

Cash Generated from operations

Direct Taxes received / (paid)

Net Cash from Operating Activities {A)

B. h n i iviti
Purchase of property, plant & equipment & CWIP

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B)

C. inanci Jviti
Issue of redeemable Preference shares

Net Cash from Financing Activilies {C)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Fquivalents (A+B+C)

|Cash and Cash Eguivalents - Opening Balance

Cash and Cash Equivaients - Closing Balance

INotes:

Cash & Cash Eguivalents ¢
Cash on hand

Balance with Scheduled Banks:
In Current Account

Cash and Cash Equivaients at the end of the year

(2.08)

2,33
(0.24)

(2:08)

2.09

(8.14)

‘(8:14)

2.74
5.19
0.18 8.11

0.01

0.01

0.01
0.03

0.04

0.02

0.02

0.04

(0.03)

{0.03)

(0.03){
0.06
0.03

0.0

0.01
0.03

Note :

i} The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method” as set out in Ind AS - 7 " Statement of Cash Flows" issued.

by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
iy Figures In brackets denotes cash outflows.

As per our report of even date attached
For ARVS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm registration number: 0328008E

Dot Bhoighen

C.A. Rahul Bhojghatia
Partner : _
Membership No.: 304047
UDIN:23304047BGWYS)1053

Place: Kolkata
Date: 12th May 2023

For and op pehalf of Board of Directors
Vaibh ntia A.K.Dokania
Di r Director

DIN - 00001345 DIN - 00029002



Jogbani Highway Private Limited

Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039

Statement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended 31st March 2023

Equity Share ital
Particulars No. of Shares | Rs. in Lakhs
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each Issued, subscribed and fully paid
At Ist Aprfl, 2021 45,00,000 450.00
At 31st March, 2022 45,00,000 450.00
At 31st March, 2023 45,00,000 450.00
B} Prefer ha apital
Particulars No. of Shares | Rs. in Lakhs
12% Non - Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs.100/- each
At 1st April, 2021 2,67,000 267.00
At 31st March, 2022 2,67,000 267.00
At 31st March, 2023 2,67,000 267.00
C) Other Equity .
Reserves and Surplus
Retained
Particulars Earnings Total
As at 1st April, 2021 (254.62) (254.62)
Add:Profit/(Loss) for the year - {6.02) (6.02)
As at 31st March, 2022 (260.64) (260.64)
Add:Profit/(Loss) for the year (1.54) (1.54}
As at 31st March, 2023 {262.18) (262.18)

There has been no movement in equity shares & preference shares during the peried.

As per our report of even date

For ARVS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
.Firm registration number; 0328008E

2o Bephent

C.A. Rahul Bhojgharia
Partner

Membership No.: 304047
UDIN:23304047BGWYSJ1053

Place: Kolkata
Date: 12th May 2023

.For and

Vaib
Disactor
DIN - 00001345

antia

behalf of the Board of Directors
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A.K. Dokania

DIN - 00029002



NOTE-1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting pericd.

.« 5 »

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

»

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

I£ is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Foreign currencies
The Company’s standalone financial statements are presented in INR, which is also its functional
Currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical
reasons, the Company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date
of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or less arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair
value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or
loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).




iv.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of
the government. The Company has concluded that it is the principal in all of its revenue
arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing {atitude
and is also exposed to inventory and credit risks.

Goods and Service Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its ewn account. Rather, it is tax
collected on value added to the commeodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it
is excluded from revenue.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Revenue from construction activity

Construction revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the
construction activity at the balance sheet date, as measured by the proportion that contract costs
incurred for work performed to date bear to the estimated total contract costs. Where the outcome
of the construction cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of the
construction costs incurred If It is probable that they will be recoverable. When the outcome of the
contract is ascertained reliably, contract revenue is recognised at cost of work performed on the
contract plus proportionate margin, using the percentage of completion methed.

The estimated outcome of a contract is considered refiable when all the following conditions are
satisfied:

[} The amount of revenue can be measured reliably,

i) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the contract will flow to the
Company,

lif) The stage of completion of the contract at the end of the reporting period can be measured
reliably, :

iv} The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the contract can be measured reliably

Percentage of completion is the proportion of cost of work performed fo-date, to the total estimated
contract costs. For this purpose, total estimated contract costs are ascertained on the basis of actual
costs incurred and costs to be incurred for completion of contracts in progress, which is arrived at by
the management based on current technical data, forecasts and estimate of expenditure to be
incurred in future including contingencies, which being technical matters have been relied upen by
the auditors. Overhead expenses representing Indirect costs that cannot be directly aligned with the
jobs, are distributed over the various contracts on a pro-rata basis. Revisions in projected profit or
loss arising from change in estimates are reflected in each accounting period which, however, cannot
be disclosed separately in the standalone financial statements as the effect thereof cannot be
accurately determined.

Provision is made for ail losses Incurred to the balance sheet date. Variations in contract work, claims
and incentive payments are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will result in
revenue and they are capable of being reliably measured. Expected loss, if any, on a contract is
recognised as expense in the period in which it is foreseen, irrespective of the stage of completion of
the contract. Amount received before the related work is performed are disclosed in the Balance
Sheet as a liability towards advance received. Amounts billed for work performed but yet to be paid
by the customers are disclosed in the Balance Sheet as trade receivables.
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Tax Expenses

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporiing date.Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to sltuations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the fiability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

» When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
ligbility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxabie profit or loss,

» In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in jeint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is prabable that taxabie profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

+ When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability In a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avaifable to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become prebable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the iiability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and Deferred tax refating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current and Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
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Minimum alternate tax (MAT) pald In a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax for the year. The deferred tax asset is recognised for MAT credit available only to the extent that
it is probable that the concerned company will pay normal income tax during the specified period,
i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the
company recognizes MAT credit as an asset, It is created by way of credit to the statement of profit
and loss and shown as part of deferred tax asset. The company reviews the “MAT credit entilement”
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is no longer probable
that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company regards the previous GAAP carrying value for all its property, plant and equipment as
deemed cost at the transition date, viz., 1 April 2017,

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. Property, plant
and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
fosses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement If the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissicning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets
specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert, management estimate and
related contracts with the customers, depreciates steel shuttering and certain items of building over
estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upen disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain
or loss alising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognised,

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets -
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carrled at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life (three years) and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation peried and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting peried. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
hetween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantizl period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of
the arranigement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

Company as a lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified
as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of
the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease paymenis. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributablé to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy
on the borrowing costs (See note XX}. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods
in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is
depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term. :

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.,

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as
follows:

Raw_materials (including those relating to construction achivities) and stores & spares: cost includes

cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost Is determined on 'weighted average’ basis.

Finished goods: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on ‘weighted average’ basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, Including impairment on inventories, are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its
recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the cbligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligaticn. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate assef, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating o a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of
any reimbursement, : :

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using & current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has
no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes
contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance
sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as
a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the
contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or
a cash refund,

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be
made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit
plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts Included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through
OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in profit or ioss on the earlier of:

. The date of the plan amendment or curtaiiment, and
. The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit cbligation as an expense
in the statement of profit and loss:

»  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curfailments and non-routine settlements; and
» Net interest expense or income.

Other long term employee benefits in the nature of long term paid absences are provided for based
on actuarial valuation made at the end of each financial year using the projected unit credit method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. '

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank coverdrafts as they are considered an
integral part of the Company's cash management,

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity hoider
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus
issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split {consolidation of shares)
that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in
resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity. :

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at falr value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within.a
time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset,




Subsequent measurement
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

» The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash fiows, and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified’ dates to cash flows that are solefy
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) method. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
profit or loss.

Equity mvestments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may
make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the
fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on
the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI, There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative
gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at falr value with all changes
recogmzed in the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company’'s balance shegt) when: -

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards-of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company
also recognizes an associated [ability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligaticns-that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impalrment foss on the following financial assets and credlt risk
exposure




» Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

» Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18 (referred to as
‘contractual revenue receivables’ in these financial statements)

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance onTrade
receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simpiified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

ECL is the difference between all centractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with
the contract and al!l the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e.,, all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR, Lifetime ECL are the expected cradit losses resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other
expenses’ in the P&L.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, loans and borrowings or payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financlal liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and borrowings :
After -initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. ,

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derlivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.




Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
ltability takes place either: '

» In the principal market for the asset or liabllity, or
» In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liabllity

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to anather
market participant that would use the asset in lts highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
s significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

¢} Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair valu
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporiing period. -

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabillties on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.




Juogbani Highway Private Limited
Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2022

2, Property, plant and equipment

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

Land*

Grass Block:

As at 1st April 2021
Additions

Deduction / Disposals

23.59

As at 31st March 2022

23.59

Addlitions
Deduction - Writien off

As at 31st March 2023

Depreciation/Amortisation:
As at 1st April 2021

Charge for the yaar

|Dedugtion / Disposals

As at 31st March 2022

Charge for the year
Deduction - Written off

|As at 31st March 2023

Net Block:

[As at 31st March 2022

23.59

As at 31st March 2023

23,59

* On Cancellation of loan of Rs. 70,00 Crore sanctioned fo the company by State Bank of Tnfdia, Land which was kept as security with SBI CAP, has

been released.

3. Deferred tax assets {net)

{Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022
Non - Current | Non - Current
Deferred tax assets
- Expenses allowable against taxable income in future years 90.82 90.28
Less.
Timing difference on depreciable assets - -
Net Deferred tax assets (net) 9{.82 90.28
4. Cash and cash equivalents
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at31st
March 2023 March 2022
Current Current |
Balances with banks:
- On current accounts .02 0401
Cash on hand 0.02 0.02
0.04 0.03
5. Other current assets {unsecured, considered good)
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Asat 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022 |
Current Current
Advances recoverable in cash or kind - -
Loans and advances to related parties 340:54 342.87
340.54 342,87 |




Jogbani Highway Private Limited
Company Xdentification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023

6. Equity share capital

{Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022
(a) Authorized :
5,000,000 {31st March 2022 : 5,000,000) Equity shares of Rs, 10/~ each 500.00 500.00
5,10,000 (31st March 2022 ; 9,10,000) 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shares cf Rs. 100/~ each 910.00 910.00
1,410.00 1.410.00
(b) Issued, subscribed and pald-up
4,500,000 (31st March 2022 : 4,500,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 450.00 450.00
2,67,000 (31st March 2022 : 2,67,000) 12% Non Cumtlative Redeemable Preference
Shares of Rs. 100/- each 267.00 267.00
Total issued, subscribed and fully pald-up share capital 717.00 717.00

(c) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
i. Equity Shares

(a) The company has only ona class of equily shares having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied to one vote
per share, The company will dedlare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend, If any, proposad by the Bgard of Directors is subject

to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mesting.

(b} The amaunt of per share dividend recognised as distributions ta equity shareholders was Rs. Nit {31st March 2022 ; Rs, Nif)

(} In the event of liquidation of the Compary, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remalning assets of tha Company. The
distribution wlll be In prepartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders, .

il. 12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

(2) The Redesmable Preferance Shares rank in regerds to return of capital and dividend in priority to the equity shares.

(b) The Redeemable Preference Shareholders do nat have any right to vote at any meeting except in case of reduction of share capltal, winding
up matters, propesal that affect the right of redeemable preference shareholders, in such cases each preference sharsholders shall have one
vote for each redeemable preference shares, the holder may demand a poll at the general meeting where such holder is entitled to vote.

() The Company can issue subsequent preference shares only after getting permission for not less than three - forth existing shareholders and

existing shares shalt have priority over subsequent issue of preference shares.

(d) The Redeemable Preference Shares may be redeemed at any ime after the explry of 13 years from the date of issue / allotment or earller

subject to approval / consent of Board, preference sharehoiders and lenders.

{d) Petails of Equity Shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company
i. Equity Shares

Name of the shareholder As at31st As at 31st
Mzrch 2023 March 2022

GPT Infraprojects Limited -

i, Nao of shares held 33,00,000 33,00,004

il. Percentage of holding 73.33% 73.33%

RDS Projects Limited -

i» No of shares held 12,00,000 12,00,000

ii. Percentage of holding 26.67% 26.67%

I, 12%: Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares

Mame of the shareholder As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022

GPT Infraprojects Limited )

i, No of shares held 2,657,000 2,67,000

il. Percentage of holding 100.00% 100.00%




Jogbant Highway Private Limited

Company Identification No - U45400WB2010PTC150039
Notes to Financial Statements as at and for the year ended 31st March 2023
(e) Details of shares hald by the Company's holding Company GPT Infraprojects Limited is

Class of Shares As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022 |
No. of No. of
Shares held Shares held
Equity Shares 33,00,000 33,00,000
12% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 2,67,000 2,67,000

(f} As per records of the company, induding its register of shareholders / members and other declarations received from shareholders ragarding

benaficlal interest, the above sharshalding represents hoth legal and beneficial ownerships of shares.

7. Other aquity

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Patticulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance as per last financlal statements {260.64) (254.62)
Less:Loss for the year {1.54) {6.02)
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss (262.18) (260.64)
Total Other Equity {262.18) (260.64)
8. Other firancial liabilities
(Rs. in Lakhs
Particulars As at 31sk As at 31st
March 2023 March 2022
Current Current
Other Payzables
- Expenses payable {other than trade payable) © 07 041
0.17 0.41 |
9, Other expenses
{Rs. in Lakhs}
Particulars 2022-23 2021 - 22
Professional and legat fees 1.93 37t
Filing fees .03 0.02
Bark charges 0.02 0.02
Payment to auditor
- As audit fees 0.10 0.15
Receivables written off - 4,24
2.08

8.14




NOTE-10 CORPORATE INFORMATION:

The Company was formed on 31st May 2010 as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) having its main object
to execute the project for Rehabilitation and Upgrading of existing intermediate lane roads to 2 lane with
paved shoulders of Forbesganj — Jogban! (km 0.000 to km 9.258) on NH-57A in the state of Bihar under
NHDP Phase — III on DBFOT Annuity basis having a Concession period of 15 years including construction
period of 2 years from the appointed date stated in clause 3.1 of Article-3, Part I of the Concession
Agreement. At the end of the concession period the entire facility will be transferred to National
Highway Authority of India.

FY2022-—23 FY2021-22
Particulars Rs., in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs
(a) Bank Guarantee issued by a Banker of Nil Nil
holding Company on behalf of the .
company for performance of the Contract - '
(b) Disputed Income Tax Demand for the AY 2011-12 285.40 285.40
Under Appeal
(c) Capital Commitments Nil Nil
NOTE — 12 Amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises:

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues, which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as at 31™ March 2023, This information as required to be disclosed
under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006, has been determined to the extent such
parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. In view of this, the
liability of the interest and disclosure are not required to be given in the financial statements.

NOTE — 13 Segment Reporting:

a. Business Segment :
The business segments have been identified on the basis of the Activities undertaken by the
company. Accordingly, the Company has identified Civil and core Infrastructure as single business
activity. And hence separate information about business segment is not applicable.

b. Geographicai segment ;
The Company operetes in India only and hence separate information about geographical segment
is not applicable.

NOTE - 14 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES:

In compliance with IND AS — 24, the disclosures regarding related parties are as follows:

a. Name of Related parties:

b.

Mr. Vaibhav Tantia, Director
! Mr. A. K. Dokania, Director

a) | Key Management Personnel (KMP)

b) | Holding Company :| GPT Infraprojects Limited

Details of transactions and Balances outstanding:




Key Management | Holding Company Total
Nature of Transactions Personnel {Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)
{Rs. in Lakhs)
Payment to sub-contractor
GPT Infraprejects Limited
(Adjusted against the mobilization ) 2.33 2.33
advance) () (3.70) (3.70)
Balance outstanding as at the
vear end — Debit
. - - 340.54 340,54
GPT Infraprojects Limited ) (342.87) (342.87)
Figure in Bracket represents Previous Year Figure.
NOTE - 15 EARNING PER SHARES:
The breakup of Earnings per Share (EPS) in terms of IND AS - 33 is as follows:-
Particulars 2022 - 23 2021 -22
{Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
Net Profit / (Loss) as per Profit & Loss Statement {1.54) (6.02)
Weighted average number of equity shares in 45,00,000 45,00,000
calculating basic EPS (Nos.)
Weighted average number of equity shares in 45,00,000 45,00,000
calculating dilutive EPS {(Nos.)
Basic EPS (0.03) (0.13)
Diluted EPS (0.03) (0.13)

NOTE — 16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Owing to termination of “Concession Agreement” executed with National Highway Authority of India ,
the company has no employee during the year and as such, IND AS - 19 : Employee Benefits not
applicable to the company.

NOTE — 17 CORPORATE SOCTAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs
to spend at least 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on
corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable to the Company, Since the Company has no prefit in last three years.
Accordingly the Company has not spend any amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
activities,

NOTE — 18 TERMINATION OF CONCESSION AGREEMENT:

The “Concession Agreement” executed with National Highway Authority of India (NHAIL) for a BOT
project was terminated by the Company mainly due to required land not being made available by the
NHAI in terms of clause 4.1.2 of the “Concession Agreement” for up gradation of existing intermediate
Jane roads to 2 lane from Forbesganj — Jogbani on NH-57A in the state of Bihar under NHDP Phase — III
and invoked the arbitration clause. Consequently The Company also terminated EPC contract with its
Holding Company (EPC Contractor Company) entered for execution of the said contract, :

The Arbitral Tribunal vide Award pronounced on 23™ November, 2017 for a sum of Rs. 6,223.66 Lakhs
in favour of the Company which, upon an application made by NHAI under section 33 of The Arbitration




and Conciliation Act, 1996, was reduced to Rs, 6,120.32 Lakhs vide their Order passed by the Arbitral
Tribunal on 27" March, 2018.

NHAI has challenged the Arbitral Award dated 23™ November 2017 before the Hon'ble High Court of
Delhi and the same is pending adjudication before the said court. The Hon'ble Court vide its order dated
08" August 2018 directed to NHAIL to deposit Rs 3,000.00 Lakhs as security against the challenge made
to the arbitral award dated 23" November 2017,

By subsequent order dated 18" March 2019 of the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi, the Company has been
granted the iiberty to withdraw the said amcunt of Rs 3,000.00 Lakhs against submission of a solvent
security. The referred matter was listed for several hearings before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi during
the financial year and will list for hearing before Hon'ble High Court of Delhi on 11% July 2023. The
company has neither submitted solvent security nor withdrawn any amount so far against order of
aforesaid Hon'ble High Court.

In view of the “The Arbitral Tribunal award”, the accounts of the Company have been prepared on a
going concern basis.

NOTE-19 RATIOS AS PER SCHEDULE ITT REQUIREMENTS:

The ratios as per Schedule III requirements are given in the enclosed Annexure-"A".

As per our report of even date

For ARVS & ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN.0328008E

Aol Bt

N
A. K. Dokania

it Director
DIN — 00001345 DIN - 00023002

C.A. Rahul Bhojgharia
Partner

Membership No.- 304047
UDIN: 23304047BGWYS11053

Place : Kolkata
Date : 12" May 2023
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GPT Investments Private Limited
Directors’ report

The directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of GPT
Investments Private Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the company is that of investment holding.
Results and dividend
The results for the year are shown on page 7.

Dividend declared for the year under review is Nil (2022: Nil).
Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which present
fairly the financial position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements which comply with the Mauritius
Companies Act 2001. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are required to:

B select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

®= make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

= state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the Company and Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in the period ahead.

Auditors

The auditors, Lancasters, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and a resolution
concerning their re-appointment will be proposed at the next Annual Meeting of shareholders.

By order of the Board
I." "-.II . \
& 1 .
ARl
o I aql-ll — *.j”“__!_’“_l N,
Director Date: - 17 May 2023



Rogers Capital

GPT Investments Private Limited

Secretary’s certificate
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Secretary’s certificate under Section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with Section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we certify that to the best of
our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies for the year ended 31
March 2023, all such returns as are required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

."Hl'-:_"-' T

For and on behalf of ROGERS CAPITAL CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED
Company Secretary

Date: 17 May 2023

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited. Rogers House, 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius | BRN
C08011019|T:(230)203 1100 www.rogerscapital.mu




3. Lancasters

narterad Accountonts

Auditor’s report to shareholder of GPT Investments Private Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of GPT Investments Private Limited the Company ) set out on pages 7 to 38
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, the financial position of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a hasis for our opinion.

Other Infarmation

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report and the
Company Secretary’s Certificate as required by the Companies Act 2001, but does not include the financial statements our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Auditor’s report to shareholder of GPT Investments Private Limited continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s report to shareholder of GPT Investments Private Limited continued)

Other matter

This report is made solely for the Company's member, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's member those matters we are required to state to them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Mauritius Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as auditors and dealings in the ordinary
course of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those
records.

T
Lancasters, Pasram Bissessur FCCA, ACA, MBA UK)
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC

14, Lancaster Court
Lavoquer Street
Port Louis
Mauritius

Date 17.05.2023
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

for the year ended 31 March 2023

Revenue

Expenses

Salaries

Audit and accounting fees
Legal and professional fees
Licence fees

Bank charges

Sundries

Profit from operating activities

Finance income

Profit before taxation

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income — net change in fair value

Total comprehensive income for the year

Notes

The notes on pages 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements

2023 2022
USD USD
146,246 150,000
94,140 79,750
9,500 4,750
8,721 9,432
2,638 2,525
444 402
- 933
115,443 97,792
30,803 52,208
84,024 107,965
114,827 160,173

(8,075) (3,034)
106,752 157,139
(115,885) -
(9,133) 157,139




GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of financial position

at 31 March 2023

Notes 2023 2022

USD USD
Assets
Non-current assets
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 9 900,472 1,016,357
Loan receivable 10 3,850,262 3,766,238
Total non-current assets 4,750,734 4,782,595
Current assets
Other receivables 11 1,955,382 1,983,764
Tax receivable 8 923 923
Cash and cash equivalents 7,738 1,329
Total current assets 1,964,043 1,986,016
TOTAL ASSETS 6,714,777 6,768,611
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Stated capital 12 2,000,000 2,000,000
Fair value reserve (8,762) 107,123
Retained earnings 4,600,818 4,494,066
Total equity 6,592,056 6,601,189
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other payables 13 114,646 167,422
Tax payable 8 8,075 -
Total current liabilities 122,721 167,422
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,714,777 6,768,611
These financial statements have been approved by the Board on ...... 17 May2023 ... and
signed on its behalf by: =
 J | \
I' J J‘u. Ll
i jui
............................................. e T e ' o b e
Director Director

The notes on page 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements



GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance at 1 April 2021

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transaction with owner of
the Company

Dividend

Balance at 31 March 2022

Total comprehensive income for the
year

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Transaction with owner of
the Company

Dividend

Balance at 31 March 2023

Stated Fair value Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
USD USD USD USD
2,000,000 107,123 4,336,927 6,444,050
- - 157,139 157,139
2,000,000 107,123 4,494,066 6,601,189
- - 106,752 106,752

- (115,885) - (115,885)
2,000,000 (8,762) 4,600,818 6,592,056

The notes on page 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements




GPT Investments Private Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

2023
USD
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 114,827
Adjustment for:
Interest income (84,024)
Cash from operation before working capital changes 30,803
Working capital changes:
Change in other receivables 28,382
Change in other payables 52,224
Cash generated from operations 111,409
Corporate tax paid -
Net cash from operating activities 111,409
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (105,000)
Net cash used in financing activities (105,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 6,409
Cash and cash equivalents at 01 April 1,329
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 7,738

The notes on page 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements

10

2022
UsSDh

160,173

(107,965)

6,855



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1.

2.

General information

The Company was incorporated as a Private Limited Company on 27 March 2008 and holds a Global
Business Licence issued by the Financial Services Commission. The principal activity of the
Company is that of investment holding.

The address of the registered office is ¢/o Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited, 3™ floor, Rogers
House, No. 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius.

Basis of preparation

(@)

(b)

(©

(@

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accountancy Standard Board
(“IASB”) and in compliance with the requirements of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income which are fair valued.

Functional currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (USD) which is the Company’s
functional currency and presentation currency.

Use of the estimates and judgement

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that
affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised
prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the

following notes:

] Note 6 — Revenue recognition — Whether management fee is recognized over time or at a point in
time

11



GPT Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(d) Use of the estimates and judgement (continued)
Assumption and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties at 31 March 2023 that have a
significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the next financial year is included in the following notes: and liabilities

Note 5 - measurement of ECL allowance for receivables.

(i) Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

= Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

12



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(a) New and amended standards and interpretations

In the current year, the Company has applied a number of amendments to IFRS Standards and
Interpretations issued by the IASB that are effective for an annual period that begins on or after 1
January 2022. Their adoption has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts
reported in these financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of performing the “10
per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with
earlier application permitted.

This amendment is not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
(b) Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective.

Effective for

annual periods

beginning on or

Description after
Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information 1 January 2023
(Amendments to IFRS 17)

Amendments to [FRS 17 1 January 2023
Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to IAS 8 1 January 2023
Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies — Amendments to IAS 1 and 1 January 2023
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (Amendments to IAS 1) 1 January 2024
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to 1 January 2024
IAS 1

The directors expect that the adoption of the above standards will have no material impact on the
financial statements in the period of initial application.

13



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in
these financial statements:

(a) Revenue recognition
Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payments is established.
(b) Income tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. It is
measured using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also
includes any tax arising from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.
(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised; such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

14



GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(©

(@

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation is recognised in OCI as
available-for-sale equity investments (except on impairment, in which case foreign currency
differences that have been recognised in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss).

Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade

receivable without significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost; FVOCI — debt
investment; FVOCI — equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

= itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

= its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

= it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets; and

= its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets - Business model assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising
cash flows through the sale of the assets;

=  how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

= the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

= how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

= the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for
such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition
are not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition

of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets — Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time
and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well
as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
= terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
= prepayment and extension features; and

= terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-
recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the sole payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early termination
of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium to its
contractual paramount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest(which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised
cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains, and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at
FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend
clearly represents a recovery of part of other cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and
never reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability

is classified as at FVTPL if it is

classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated

as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net

gains and losses, including any

interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other financial

liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain

or loss on derecognition is also

recognised in profit or loss.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(@

(e)

Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are
modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished
and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is
recognised in profit or loss.

(iv) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right
to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Stated capital
Ordinary shares
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a deduction

from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in
accordance with IAS 12.
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GPT Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment
(i) Non-derivative financial assets
Financial instruments and contract assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortised
cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

= debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

= other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since

initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and

supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes

both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical

experience and informed credit assessment, that includes forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

= the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse
by the company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

= the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment (continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is
less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.
Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

= significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

= a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

= the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

= it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

= the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Impairment (continued)
(i) Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is charged to profit or loss and is recognised in
OCIL.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. For individual
customers, the Company has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount when the financial
asset is 180 days past due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets. For
corporate customers, the Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amounts of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The
Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(ii) Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuous use that is largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Significant accounting policies (continued)

o

(g

()

(i)

Impairment (continued)

(ii) Non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on an accrual basis.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Related parties

Related parties may be individuals or other entities where the individual or other entities have the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the Company or exercise significant influence over the
Company in governing the financial and operating policies, or vice versa, or where the Company
is subject to common control or common significant influence.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b) Financial risk management

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, loan receivable, other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, and other payables. The recognition method adopted is disclosed in the individual policy
statement associated with each item. The most important types of risk are market risk, credit risk, and
liquidity risk.

The Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the
analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. The
Company’s aims are therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of
reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Company regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and emerging best practices.

Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Market risk
= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk

Market risk

Market risk represents the potential loss that can be caused by a change in the market value of
financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to market risk is determined by a number of factors,
including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and market volatility. The Company
conducts its investment operations in a manner that seeks to exploit the potential gains in the market,
while limiting its exposure to market declines.

= Currency risk
The Company has financial assets denominated in South African Rand (ZAR). Consequently, the
Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of the USD relative to ZAR may change in a

manner, which has a material effect on the reported values of the Company’s financial assets which
are denominated in USD.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Market risk (continued)

®  Currency risk (continued)

Currency profile

Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
2023 2023 2022 2022
USD USD uUsD uUsSD
usD 5,813,382 114,646 5,745,374 167,422
ZAR 900,472 - 1,016,357 -
6,713,854 114,646 6,761,731 167,422

Sensitivity analysis — currency risk
2023 2022
Currency USD USD
ZAR 101,636 101,636

A 10 % strengthening of USD against the ZAR at 31 March 2023 would have increased net profit
before tax by USD101,636 (2022: USD101,636). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis in 2022.

Similarly, a 10 percent weakening of the USD against the ZAR at 31 March 2023 would have had
the exact reverse effect.

= nterest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the
reporting date. A 25-basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk.

If interest rates have been 25 basis points (bps) higher/lower and all other variables held constant, the
profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 would decrease by USD 4,028 (2022:USD 8,575) attributable
to the Company’s exposure to interest rates on a variable rate of interest.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)

= [nterest rate risk (continued)

Before sensitivity
analysis

Loan receivable

After sensitivity
analysis
+ 25bps

Loan receivable

(Decrease) / Increase in
loan interest receivable

Credit risk

Basic interest

rate
2023 2022
5.00%-
0,
4% 5.75%

Basic interest
Rate
2023 2022

4%-  5.38%-
4.25%  5.63%

Average principal Interest
amount accrued
2023 2022 2023 2022
USD UsSDh USD UsDh
2,071,818 2,071,818 84,024 107,965
Average principal Interest
amount accrued
2023 2022 2023 2022
USD UsSDh USD USD
2,071,818 2,071,818 88,052 116,540
(4,028)  (8,575)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet contractual obligations, and arises from the Company’s loan receivable, other
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents.

The Company also limits its exposure to credit risk by dealing or investing only with counterparties
that have a good credit rating and management does not expect counter-parties to fail to meet their

obligations.

Exposure to credit risk and Expected Credit Loss assessment:

The Company has assessed the Expected Credit Loss on the following:

= Loan receivable USD 3,850,262
= Other receivables USD 1,955,381
®  Cash and cash equivalents USD 7,738
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Exposure to credit risk and Expected Credit Loss assessment (continued):
Loan receivable and other receivables
As the loan receivable and other receivables are from a related party, these have been assessed to be
having a low credit risk due to the fact that the Company and the related parties are under common
management. Moreover, there has so far been no defaults of repayment. Accordingly, no adjustments
have been made in respect to Expected Credit Losses on loan receivable and other receivables from
related parties.

Cash and cash equivalents

The bank balance being held with a reputable financial institution, the ECL has been considered as
immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed

conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Company’s reputation.

Within one  Within one to

year five years Total
31 March 2023 USD USD USD
Financial liabilities
Other payables 114,646 - 114,646
USD USD USD
31 March 2022
Financial liabilities
Other payables 167,422 - 167,422
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Revenue

A. Revenue streams

The Company generates revenue primarily from management service fees.

Revenue from contract with customers
Management service fees

Total revenue

B. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

2023 2022
USD USD
146,246 150,000
146,246 150,000

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by primary
geographical market, product line and timing of revenue recognition.

Primary geographical market

South Africa

Major product line
Management Services

Timing of revenue recognition
Services provision over time

(a) Performance obligations and revenue recognition policies

2023 2022
USD UsSDh
146,246 150,000
146,246 150,000
146,246 150,000

Type of Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance Revenue recognition
product obligations, including significant payment terms policies

Management Invoices are raised on a monthly basis Revenue is recognised
fees over time
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

7. Finance income

2023 2022
USD USD
Interest income on Loan 84,024 107,965

8. Taxation

The Company holds a Global Business Licence for the purpose of the Financial Services Act 2007
of Mauritius. The Company is liable to tax at the rate of 15% on all its income. Pursuant to the
enactment of the Finance Act 2018, with effect since 01 January 2019, the deemed foreign tax credit
has phased out since 01 July 2021. Any income derived prior to 30 June 2021, will still be entitled
to a deemed foreign tax credit of 80% or actual foreign tax credit, whichever is the higher. Any
income derived after 30 June 2021 will be subject to tax at the rate of 15% and would be entitled to
either:

(a) a foreign tax credit equivalent to the actual foreign tax suffered on its foreign income against the
Company’s tax liability arising in Mauritius on such income, or

(b) a partial exemption of 80% applicable to specified income, including but not limited to foreign-
source dividends or interest income, subject to the Company meeting the necessary substance
requirements.

Further, the Company is exempted from income tax in Mauritius on profits or gains arising from the
sale of securities. In addition, there is no withholding tax payable in Mauritius in respect of payments

of dividends to shareholders or in respect of redemptions or exchanges of shares.

A reconciliation of the actual income tax based on accounting profit and the actual income tax
expense is as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

8. Taxation (continued)

Recognised in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

2023 2022

USD USD
Charge for the year (8,075) (3,034)
Income tax expense (8,075) (3,034)
Reconciliation of effective tax

2023 2022

USD USD
Profit before taxation 114,827 160,173
Income tax at 15% 17,225 24,026
Unauthorised deductions 933 704
Exempt income (10,083) (10,333)
Foreign tax credit - (11,363)
Tax for the year 8,075 3,034
Tax receivable

2023 2022

USD USD
Balance at 31 March 930 930
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

8. Taxation (continued)

9.

Current tax liability

Balance at 01 April
Tax charge for the year
Tax paid during the year

Balance at 31 March

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Cost:
At 01 April

At 31 March

Unrealised appreciation
At 01 April
Unrealised loss on fair value

At 31 March

Fair value
At 31 March

2023 2022
USD USD
8,075 3,034

- (13,757)

8,075 (923)
2023 2022
USD UsD
909,234 909,234
909,234 909,234
107,123 107,123
(115,885) -
(8,762) 107,123

Name of company Type and number of % holding
shares

GPT Concrete Products

South Africa Proprietary 7,500 equity shares

Limited of ZAR 1 each 15

900,472 1,016,357

Country of incorporation

South Africa

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income is categorised as level 3 under
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Discounted cash flow technique

The fair value of the investment held in GPT Concrete Products South Africa Proprietary Limited
has been calculated using the present value of discounted cash flow technique. This valuation model
considers the present value of future cash flows, discounted using a risk-adjusted discount rate.
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

10. Loan receivable

11.

2023 2022
USD USD
Loan advanced to related company:
At 01 April 2,071,818 2,071,818
Movement during the year - -

At 31 March 2,071,818 2,071,818
Interest receivable

At 01 April 1,694,420 1,586,454
Movement during the year 84,024 107,966
At 31 March 1,778,444 1,694,420

Carrying value:
At 31 March 3,850,262 3,766,238

The above loan bears interest at the rate of Prime Lending Rate as applicable in South Africa.
Repayment of the loan is expected after more than 12 months.

Other receivables

2023 2022
USD USD
Management service fees receivable 1,955,382 1,979,136
Prepaid expenses - 4,628

1,955,382 1,983,764
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

12. Stated capital

13.

2023 2022
USDh uUSD
At 31 March 2,000,000 2,000,000
Number of ordinary shares of USD 1 each
At 01 April / 31 March 2,000,000 2,000,000
At 31 March 2,000,000 2,000,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Other payables
2023 2022
USD uUsSD
Other payables 102,722 50,000
Dividend payable - 105,000
Accrued expenses 11,924 12,422
114,646 167,422
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GPT Investments Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
14. Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if they are

subject to common control.

During the year under review, the Company entered into the following related party transactions.

2023 2022
USD usDh
Transaction during the year Nature
Management
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd accrued 146,246 450,000
Management fees
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd settled (170,000) (135,000)
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd Interest accrued 84,024 107,965
Balances outstanding at 31 March:
Management fees
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd receivable 1,955,382 1,979,136
GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd Loan receivable 2,071,818 2,071,818

GPT Concrete Products South Africa Pty Ltd Interest receivable 1,778,444 1,694,420

Compensation to key management personnel

The Company did not pay any compensation to its key management personnel during the year under
review (2022: nil).
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GPT Investments Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

15.

Capital management

The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s sources of
additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the
Company’s capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. Trading balances that arise as
a result of trading transactions with other group Companies are not regarded by the Company as
capital.

The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the Company to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the Company.
The results of the directors’ review of the Company’s capital structure are used as a basis for the
determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

16. Holding company

17.

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GPT Infraprojects Limited, a company incorporated
in India and is listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange and the National Stock Exchange of India. Its
registered address is JC-25, Sector-111, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700 098, West Bengal, India.

Events subsequent to reporting date

There has been no significant event after the reporting date which requires disclosure or amendment
to these financial statements.
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Chartered Accountants
The Directors 14 Lancaster Court
GPT Investments Private Limited Lavoquer Street
Clo Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited Port Louis
Rogers House Mauritius
b, President John Kennedy Street Tel 2302134510
Port Louis Fax 2302130201

info.lancasters@intnet.mu
www.lancastersca.com
BRN P07017886

17 May 2023

Dear Sirs

RE GPT Investments Private Limited year ended 31 March 2023

As far as the extent of our audit procedures is concerned, we confirm that GPT Investments Private Limited has
complied with the condition in the paragraph 9 a) of the Company’s Global Business Licence bearing number
C108005731 for the year ended 31 March 2023.

ST

Lancasters, Pasram Bissessur FCCA, ACA, MBA UK)
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC

14, Lancaster Court

Lavoquer Street

Port Louis

Mauritius
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. €S066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Report of the board of directors
For the period ended 31 March 2023

In accordance with the requirements of section 136 of the Companies Act, 2019(Act 992), the
Directors have the pleasure in presentiag the report-of the Compariy for the period ended 31
March 2023.

1. Principal activities

The principal activity of the company is to produce and supply railway sleepers; raitway mouids
and concrete products for the road, building and civil construction industry.

2. Financial resuits

The financial resuits of the Company are set out below:

2023

GH¢

Retained earnings at beginning -
Profit for the period 67_8_,‘3_8_5
‘ 678,385

3. Going Concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies
applicable to a going concern. This. basis presumes that funds will be available to finance
future operafions and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent
‘obligations-and commitments that will occur in the ordinary. course of business.

4, Events after reporting date.

All eévents subsequent to the date of the annual financial statements and for which the
applicable financial reporting framework require -adjustment or disclosuré have been

adjusted or disclosed.
The Directors afe not aware of any other matter or circumstance arising since the end of
the financial period t¢ the date of this report that could have a material effect on the

financial position of the ‘Company.

5. Directors’ interest in contracts

No Directors Had any iriterest in contracts entered into during the period under review.

6. Authoriséd and issued share capital

“The company is registered with 7,284,920 Equity Shares of GHS 7,284,920 (US§$
1,000,000) and 33,750,000 Preference Shares of GHS 33,750,000 (US$ 3,750,000).

Qut of the above, 7,284,920 Equity Shares have been paid up during the year under review
and 30,375,000 Preference Shares have been paid up by the Shareholders during the year
under review.
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Report of the board of directors
For the period ended 31 March 2023

7. Borrowing limitations

In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company, the Directors may exercise
all the powers of the Company to borrow money, as they consider appropriate.

8. Dividends
There were no dividend payments made by the Company during the period.
9. Directors’ capacity building

The Company did not undertake any capacity building activities or training for its Board of
Directors during the period ended 31 March 2023.

10. Shareholders

The shareholding of the Company as at March 31, 2023 is:

Equity Shares

GPT Infraprojects Limited, India 60% 4,370,952 Equity Shares
RMS Concrete Limited, Ghana 40% 2,913,968 Equity Shares

25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
GPT Infraprojects Limited, India 30,375,000 Preference Shares

11. Corporate social responsibility

No funds were allocated for corporate social responsibility activity during the period under
review.

12. Independent Auditors and audit fees

In accordance with Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) the auditors, Messrs.
Deloitte &Touche, will continue in office as auditors of RMS GPT Ghana Limited. As at 31 March
2023, the amount payable in respect of audit fees was GH¢117,075.00

13. Approval of the financial statements

The annual financial statements as set out on pages 10 to 26 were approved by the Board
and were signed on their behalf by:

Director: .. T TR per RS Director:[irerresesrsarsnnin S :
Atul Tantia George Kow Odum

Date: May 18, 2023 Date: May 18, 2023
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
{Reg. No. 5066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Statement of directors’ responsibilities
For the period ended 31 March 2023

The Directors are responsible for preparing financiai statements for each financial period,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at thé end of the
financial period, and of the: profit or'loss of the company for that period. In prepafing
those financial statements, the Directors are required to:

- Select sujtable accounting policies and then supply them consistently
- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
- State whether the applicable accounting standards have been followed

- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to dresume that the Company will continue in business.

The directors. are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps accounting records
which disclose ‘with reasonable accuracy the finandial pasition of the Company, and
which erables them to ensure ‘that the financial statements comply with the
International Financial Repofting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act,
2019 (Act 992). They are responsible for.taking such steps as are reasonably open to
them to safeguard the assets of the company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other
‘irregularities,
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De I o it te P.O.Box GP453  Deloitte & Touche

Accra Chartered Accountants

Ghana The Deloitte Place, Plot No. 71,
Off George Walker Bush Highway
North Dzorwulu
Accra
Ghana

Tel: +#233 (0) 302 775 355
Email: ghdeloitte@deloitte.com.gh
www2.deloitte.com/gh

Independent auditor’s report

To the members of RMS GPT Ghana Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RMS GPT Ghana Limited, set
out on pages 10 to 26, which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 March
2023, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the period then ended, the notes to the
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory disclosures.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of RMS GPT Ghana Limited as of 31 March 2023 and the financial performance and cash
flows for the period then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standard and in the manner required by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of Company in accordance with the requirements of the International Ethics
Standard Board for Accountants’ (IESBA) International Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) and other
independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in
Ghana. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with IESBA Code
and other ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statements in
Ghana.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

IMPACT THAT
MATTERS
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of RMS GPT Ghana Limited
Other Information

The Directors.are respensible for the other infermation. The other information .comprises
the Report of the Board of Directors and the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities,
which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The other information does
not'include the financial statéments and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any. form of assurance conclusion théreon.

In connection with our.audit of the fihancial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in dding so, consider whether the other information.is materiaily
inconsistent with the financial statements, or our knowledge ¢btained in- the audit, or
‘otherwise appears to be materiglly misstated.

If, hased on the work: we have performed on the other information that we obtained
prior to the date of this auditor's report, we cenclude that there is a fnaterial
misstatement of this other information, we are required to repert that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard. '

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements

The directors. are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true
and. fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard and the
requirements.of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statemenis that
are free from material misstatement; whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial -statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as & going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease. operations, or have no
realistic. alternative but to do so.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable. assurance is
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a materiai misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are.considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic-decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent auditor’s report
To the members of RMS GPT Ghana Limited

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatemient of the finandial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting :a material
misstateiment resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuiting from error, as
fraud. may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal-control.

+ Obtain an understanding of irternal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procédures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
cantrol. '

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting p'oi'icies used and the reascnableness
of accounting estimates and related disciosures made by the directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern ba_si's_
of accolinting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether & material
uncertainty exists related te events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’'s ability to continue.as a going concern. If we conciude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw. attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our apinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or- condltions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial
statements, “including the dlsciosures and whether the Fnan(:lal statements
représent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors régarding, among ¢ther matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings; mc[udlng any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We 2lso provide thase charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethicat requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
themnt ali relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
indepéendence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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Deloitte

Independent auditor’s report
To the members of RMS GPT Ghana Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Seventh Schedule of the Companies Act, 2019 (Act 992) we
expressly state that:

1. We have obtained all the information and explanation which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

2. In our opinion:

e« proper books of account have been kept by the company, so far as appears from
our examination of those books.

e the information and explanations provided to us, were in the manner required by
Act 992 and give a true and fair view of the:

a. statement of financial position of the company as at the end of the
financial period, and

b. statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
financial period.

3. The company’s statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

4. We are independent of the company, pursuant to section 143 of Act 992.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Daniel Kwadwo Owusu (ICAG/P/1327).

R O
=9 lu‘ 4"‘1 <A i LL

For and on behalf of Deloitte &Touche (ICAG/F/2023/129)
Chartered Accountants

The Deloitte Place, Plot No. 71,

Off George Walker Bush Highway

North Dzorwulu

Accra, Ghana

[ ff-
¢ pa V/ o
( ............. Lt . ververss 2023
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited

{Reg. No. Cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

For the period ended 31 March 2023

2023

GHS
Revenuye: "
Cost of Sales -
Gross Profit/Loss -
Other'Income 7,158,586
General & Administrative Expenses- (2:;828,209)
Net Profit /{Loss) before interest and Tax 4,330,277
Finance Cost (3,541,065)
Net Profit /(Loss) before Tax 789,212
Taxation (110,827)
Profit/{Loss) for the period 678,385
Gther Comprehensive Incqme[(Loss_) -
Total Comprehensive Income for the Period 678,385
Income.Surplus - 1st April,. -
Balance as at 3ist _
March, 678,385
The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements:
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. Ccs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2023

NOTES
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 8
Current Assets
Advance for Capital Works 9
Account Receivables 10
Other Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents 11
Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Stated Capital 12
25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 12
Income surplus
Total Equity
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Account Payables i3
Current Tax Liability 7

Total Liabilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

Signed:

Date:May 18, 2023 Date: May 18, 2023

The accompanying notes are integral part of these financial statements.
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2023
GHS

55,699,292

55,699,292

4,166,841
86,651
216,538
653,088

5,123,118

60,822,410

7,284,920
30,375,000
678,385

38,338,305

22,403,122

— 80,983
22,484,105

22,484,105

60,822,410




RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. €5066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Statement of changes in equity
For the period ended 31 March 2023

Balance as at 1 April
2022

Movements in the
period

Balance at 31 March
2023

25%
Cumulative

Redeemable

Stated  Preference
capital Shares
GH¢ GH¢
7,284,920 30,375,000

Income
Surplus
GH¢

6,78,385

678,385

‘The accompanying notes are Integral part of these financial statements.
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GH¢

38,338,305
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Statement of cash flows
For the period ended 31 March 2023

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Profit/(Loss)
Other Comprehensive Profit/(Loss)

Adjustment for:
Depreciation

Net Operating Profit before Investment.in working capital

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
{Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase/(Decrease)} in trade and other payables

Cash Generated from Operations
Corporate Tax Paid
Under Provision:for Tax

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASHFILOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment-
Proceeds from Disposal

Net Cash from/(Used).in Investing Activities

CASHFLQWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Equity Shares
25% Cumufative Redeemable Preference Shares

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalent
Cash & Cash Equivalents @ beginning of period

Cash & Cash Equivalents @ end of period

The accornpanying notes are f'n_te_qra! part of these financial statements.

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

2023
GH¢

789,212
789,212

789,212

(4,470,029)
22,403,122

18,722,305

18,692,461

(55,699,292)

(55,699,292)
7,284,920
30,375,000
37,659,920

653,088
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cso66320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
‘For the period ended 31 March 2023

1. General information

RMS GPT Ghana Limited is & limited company incorporated and: domiiciled in Ghana. The
address of - its. registered office and principal place of business are disclosed in the
introduction to the annual report.

The principal ‘activity of the company is to produce and supply railway sleepers, railway
moulds and .concrete products for the road, building and civil construction industry.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

The principai accounting. policies adopted in the preparation of these annual financial
statements are set out be_ijqw. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1. Basis of preparation and accounting policies

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standard issued by the iIntérnational Accounting
Standards board (IASB) and in the manner reguired by the Companies Act, 2019 (Act
992).

The financial statements are presented in Ghana Cedi (GH()

2.2. Judgments and Estimates

The presentation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS for SMEs requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
‘estimates and- associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the cifcumstances, the resuits of
which form the basis of making the judgments about :'carryi'ng:_ values of assets and
liabitities that are niot readily apparent from other sources. Actual results rnay differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to acceunting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods. if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Information about significant areas. of estimating uncertainty and criticat judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significarit effect on the amount
recognized in the. financial statements are described in note 3,

14
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited |
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.3. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivdbie.
Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances

The company's pelicy for recognition of revenue from operating income represents sale
income received from the sale of concrete products within the accounting period,

Interest income Is recognized using the effective interest rate method.
2.4. Leasing

Leases are classified. ‘as finance leases whenevér the terms of the ledse transfer
substantially. alt the risks and reéwards of ownership to the lessée. All other leases are
classified as operating leases

Amounts due from lessees. under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the
amount of the company's net investment in the leases.

2.5. Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of the entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity's functienal currency (foreign. currencies) are: recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated .at the rates
prevailing at.that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was.determined, Non=monetary. items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised: in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise except for:

» exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under
construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets
when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency
borrowings; and

+ exchange differénces on monetary items. receivable from. or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognised
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from eguity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTTAL



RMS GPT Ghana Limited |
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.6. Taxation
2.6.1. Income Tax.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

2.6.2. Current Tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs
from profit as reported in the [statement of comprehensive income/income statement]
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periods
and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

2.6.3. Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences (other than temporary
differences associated with unremitted earnings from foreign subsidiaries and associates
to the extent that the investment is essentially permanent in duration and on unused tax
losses or tax credits in the company. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
‘and laws that have been enacted or'substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date ahd a
vaiuation allowance is set up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount
equals the highest amount that is more likely than not to be recovered based on current
or future taxable profit.

2.6.4. Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT except:

where ‘the Value Added Tax incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not
recoverable from the. taxation authorities, in which case the Value Added Tax is
recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item
as applicable.

The net' amount of Value Added Tax recoverable from; or payable to, the Internal
Revenue Service is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of
Financial Position.

2.7. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly atiributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the manner interrded by management.

The company adds to the carrying amount of an item of property, piant and equipment
the cost of replacing parts of such an item when. that cost is incurred if the replacement.
part is expected to provide incremental future benefits to the company. The carrying
amount of the replaced part. is deérecognised. -All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or foss during the period in which-they are incurred.
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.7. Property, plant and equipment -continued

Items of property, plant and edquipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulatéd impairment fosses. Dépreciation is charged so as to
allocate the cost of assets less their residual vaiues over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-iine. method.

The following annual rates are used for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment:

Buildings 4 years
Plant and machinery: 4 years
Motorvehicles 4 years
Furniture-and fittings 4 years

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and. depreciation methods are reviewed, and
adjusted prospectively if appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change
sirnce the last reporting date. _
Gains and losses on disposals are. determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount -and are recognised within ‘other gains/ (losses) - net” in the profit or
loss.

Land and buiiding held for use in the productivity or supply of gocds or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the statement of financiai position at the revailued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient reguilarity that the carry amounts do not differ materialty
from those ‘that would be determined using fair values at the- end of each reporting
period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
recognised in the other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, except to the
‘extent that reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously expensed. A
decrease. in the carrying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings’is
recoghised in the profit or logs to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in
the properties” revaluation reserve to a previous revaluation of that asset.

2.8, Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost
less accumuiated amortisation and accurnulated impairtment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated uséful lives. The estimated useful
life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end ‘of each reporting period; with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated |mpa:rment fosses.
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.9. Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, property, piant and equipment, intangible assets, are rev:ewed
to determine whether ‘there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment logs. If there is an indication of possible impairment, the recoverable amount
of any affected -asset (or group of related assets) is estimated and compared with its
carrying amount. '

If estimated recoverable amount is lower, the carrying amount is reduced to its
estimated recoverable amount, and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profitor loss.

Similarly, at each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment by camparing
the carrying amount of -each item of inventory (or group of similar items) with its selling
price less costs to complete and sell. If an item of inventory (or group.of similar items) is
impaired, its carrying amount is reduced to selling price less osts to complete and sell,
and an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss subsequently reverses; the carrying amount of the asset (or group
of related assets) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount (selling
price less costs to complete and sell, in the case of inventories), but not in excess of the
amount that would have been deteimined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (group of related assets) in prior periods. ‘A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

2.10 Investment properties

Inveéstment property is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both
and is not-occupied by the company is measured. initially at cost including transaction
costs. Transaction costs include transfer taxes, professional fees for legal services and
initial leasing commissions to bring the propérty to the condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating. The carrying amount also. includes the cost of replacing part of an
existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition critetia
are met..

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair vaiue. Gains: or
losses arising from. changes in the fair values .are included in the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise, including the corresponding. tax

effect.

Investment. property is derecognised when it has been disposed of or permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The
differenice between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
would result in either gains or losses at the retirement. or disposal of investment
property. Any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of comprehenswe income

in the period of retirement or disposal.

Gains or losses on the disposal of Investment property:are determined as the diff.ere_nce
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying value of the asset in the previous full
period financial statements.
. _ 18
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Most sales are made based on normal credit terms, and the receivables ‘do not bear
interest: Where credit is extended beyond normal credit terms, receivables are meastured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. At the end of each reporting
period, the carrying-amounts of trade and other receivables are reviewed to determine.

whether there is any objecti_ve'-evidénce' Ehat the amounts are not recoverable. If sa, an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalent

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and in hand, short-term fixed deposits with an original. maturlty of three months
or less, bank overdrafts which are repayahle on demand. All of the component of the
cash and cash equivalent form an integral part of the company's cash management:
Cash and cash equivalents are measured subsequently at amortised cost.

2,12 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are recognised initially at the t'ra_n'sat':ti_on price and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.13 Borro‘win_gs'

Borrowings. are: recognised initially at the transaction price (that is, the present value of
cash payable to the bank, including transaction costs). Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Interest expense is recognised based on the effective interest
method-and is included in finance costs.

Borrowings are- classified as current liabilities unless the company has an unconditicnal
right to defer setiiement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

2.14 Provisions

Provisioris are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) because of a past event; it is probable that the Company wilt be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
ohligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to setfle the present obligation at the .end of the reporting perlod considering ‘the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision .is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
vaiue of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material)

When some or ail of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to
be recovered from a third party, a receivable Is recogrised as an asset if it is virtually
certain that reimbursement will be received, and the amouni of the receivable can be

measured reliably,
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Regq. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2.15 Decommissioning/rehabilitation provision

The Company records the present value of estimated costs of legal and constructive
obligations required to festore operating locations in the period in which the obligation is
incurred, '

The nature of these restoration activities includes dismantling and removing structures,
dismantling operating facilities, closure: of plant and waste sites, and restoration,
reclamation and re-vegetation of affected areas.

The gbligation ‘generally arises when the asset is installed, or the ground / environment
is disturbed. at the production location. When the liability is initfally recognised, the
present value of the estimated cost is capitalised by increasing the carrying amount of
the related assets. Over time, the discounted liability is increased for the change in
present valug based en the discount rates that reflect current market assessments and
the risks specific. to the liability. The perigdic unwinding of the discount is recognisad in
the Statement of Compréhensive Incomé as a finance cost. Additional disturbances or
changes in rehabilitation costs will be recognised as additions or charges to the
‘corresponding assets and rehabilitation liability when the event is identified. For closed
sites, changes to estimated cosis aré recoghised- immediately in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

2.16 Employee benefits

The company operates a defined. contribution plan and a defined benefit plan. Payments.
to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. Under the National
pension. scheme, the company contributes 13% of employees’ basic salary to the Social
Security and National Insurance Trust (SSNIT) for employee pension. The company's
obligation is limited to the relevant contribution, which were settled on due dates. The
pension liabilities -and obligation therefore rest with SSNIT.

A defined benefit plan is a pension. plan that is not a defined contribution plan. Typically,
defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive
on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, perieds of service
and compensation.

2.16.1. Employee Gratuity Fund

The comipany appropriates, from its own resources, a sum equivalent to gne percent of
the monthly basic salary of each confirmed local employee every month and place such
appropriation with an accredited professional fund manager for investment on behalf of
the employees concerned.
An employee. qualifies for this fund if at the time of his/her exit from the company
he/she has continuously, witheut break, been in theé employment of the company for not
tess than five periods and his/her exit is not because of dismissal or termination of
appointment arising from disciplinary action.
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the appiication .of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 2,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
cafrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in 'which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period orin the period of the revision and future periods: if
the revision affects both current and future pericds.

3.1 Key sources of estimation anceitainty

The following -are the key assumptions concerring the future, and other key sourcés of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a materlal adjustmerit to the carfying amounts of asseis and liabiiities within the
next financial period.

3.2 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

As described at 2.9 above, the Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property,
piant and eguipment at the end of each reporting. period. During the current period, the
directors determined that the useful lives of certain items of equipment should be
shortened, due to developments in technology..

3.3 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it'is probable that taxable prof“t will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Sigrificant management judgement is required to determine the ‘@mount of
deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based on the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

4. Other Income

GH¢

Exchange gain/loss on foreign currency
transactions 7,158,586

Other incomme consists of exchange gains/losses made on valuation of foreign
currency transactions undertaken in the period under review and also at peried
end.

21
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. Cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

5. ‘General and administrative expenses

Salary Expense

Casual Wages & Salaries

Staff Meals

Staff- Heaith & Safety

Staff - Medical

Other Staff Expenses

Employer Pension

Telephone Cell Phones

Internet Bills
‘Transportation

Travel & Accom - Local

Fuel - Factory

Accounting Fees

Audit Fees

Bank Charges

Cleaning & Housekeeping-Admin
Computer Expenses

Software Maint, and Support Expenses
Consulting Fees - Certification
Consulting Fees - Compliance
Courier & Postage:

Directors. Salary

Electricity

Fuel - Vehicles

Diesel - Generator —~ Office
Business Promotion Expenses
Business Development Expenses
General Expenses - Gifts
Insurance — General

Material Testing and Inspection Expenses
Licenses and Fees:

Permits, Visa Application & Renewal Fees
Meeting Expenses

M/V Rep & Maintenance

Motor Vehicie Rental Expenses
Printing & Stationery

Rent Expense

Rep & Maint- Buildings

Rep & Maint - Office Equipment
Rep & Maint - Plant & Machinery
Repairs & Maintenance - Electrical
Security Services

Penalties & Charges

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

2023
GH¢

942,293
24,309
28,942

6,819
4,120
5,578
122,385
4,073
4,117

24,481
79,720
4,040
176,648
117,075
209,393
1,988
1,592
15,795
183,925
3,500
2,210
105,592
2,050
55,851
2,100
55,238
19,750
2,580
19,800
14,215
7,600
54,825
615
1,139
‘21,070
4,932
101,633
4,579
236
44,158
1,785
33,341

312,221

2828309
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. c5066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

6. Finance Cost

GH¢
Interest on 25% Cum. Red. Preference Shares: 3,541,065
7. ‘Tax expense
Corporate tax
2023
GH¢
Balance -Current Tax - April 1st -
Balance -Deferred Tax - April 1st -
Tax Charged- Current Tax (110,827)
Tax Charged- Deferred Tax -
Tax Paid: 29,844
Balance - March 31st (80,983)
7a. TAXATION _
Balance -Current Tax - March 31st (80,983)
Balance -Deferred Tax - March 31st -
Balance - March 31st {80,983)

CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited |
(Reg. No. €S066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements
For the period ended 31 March 2023

2023
. g GH¢
ADYANCE FOR CAPITAL
9 WORKS
Advance for capital works. 4,166,841

Advance for capital works-consist of payments/Advances to Contractors for the
Commencement of the Factory Works.

10 ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES

Security Deposits 15,530
Prepayments 56,120
Employee/Staff Advance 15,000

86,650

11 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT

Bank Balance - Local 38,059
- Foreign 614,123
Cash in Hand a07

122 STATED CAPITAL
Authorized Shares: The company is registered with 1,000,000,000 Equity Shares of
no par vaiue.

The company is registered with 33,750,000 Preference Shares

Issued Capital _ No. af'Shares GHS

Issued for cash.and fully paid Equity S

Capital 7,284,920 7:284,920

‘Cumulative Redeemable Preference

Shares o

25% Cumulative Redeemable Preference o

Shares 30,375,000

13 ACCOUNT PAYABLES

Trade Payables 18,083,644

Otheir Payablas 661,338

Audit Fees 117,075

Debt Interest/Dividend Payable 3,541,065
22,403,122

25
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RMS GPT Ghana Limited
(Reg. No. cs066320522 dated 11 May 2022)

Notes to the financial statements

For the period ended 31 March 2023

RELATED PARTY
14 TRANSACTIONS

April 1st Additions. Payments.

GHS GHS GHS

GPT Infraprojects Limited - 3,541,065 -
RMS Concrete Limited - 113,421 104,376
Atu! Tantia - 47,600 -
George Kow Qdum - - -
Niraj Kr Sinha’ - - -
Edward Oppong - - -

15. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

There was no contingent liability at the reporting date (2021: Nil).

16.EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

March 31st
GH¢
3,541,065
9,046
47,600

2,597,711

There have been no events after the reporting date, which could hiave a material effect
on the financial position of the Company as at 31 March 2023 or its financial

performance, which have not been fecognized or disclosed
statements.

‘CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL

in these financial
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the financial statements to the Directors of GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited

We have audited the financial statements of GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited set out on pages pages 7
to 26, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023 and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GPT Concrete Producis
South Aftica (Propristary) Limited as at 31 March 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional
Conduct for Registered Anditors (IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing andits of
financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Codes and
in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Codes are consistent
with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Intermnational Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to Note 27 in the financial statements, which details that a material uncertainty exists related to a going
concern. As stated in Note 27 these events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast doubt on the
company's ability to continue as a going concemn. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other Information

The directors' are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report as required by
the Companies Act of South Africa and other supplementary information set out on pages 27 to 29. The other information does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit opinion or any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)

Responsibilities of the Directors' for the Fivancial Statements

The directors’ are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal
control as the directors' determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, the directors’ are responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appiicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors' either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis as a whole are free from material
wisstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an andit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We afso:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovetride of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi gn audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concer basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atiention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conciusions are based on the avdit evidence ohtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overal! presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, inchuding the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (continued)
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that this is the
sixth year that we are the auditors of GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited.

Lea Oosthuizen & Smith Inc. 50 Francis Road
Registered Accountants and Auditors Ladysmith
Director: DI Lee 3370
Ladysmith, KwaZulu-Natal

Republic of South Africa

Date: 13- - 1223,
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa {(Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

DIRECTORS* RESPONSIBILITY AND AFPROVAL

The directors' are required by the Companies of South Africa, to maintain adequate accounting records and are responsible for
the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial information included in this reporl. N is their
responsibility to ensure that the financial statemnents fairly present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial
year and the results of its operations and cash flow for the period then ended, in conformity with the Iniernationa) Financial
Reporting Standards. The external audiiers are engaged 10 express an independent opinion on the financial statements.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards and are based upon
appropriate accounting policies consisiently applied and supporied by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors’ acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial contro! established by the
company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong contro! environment. To enable the directors' 10 meet these
respensibilicies, the board of directors' sets standards for intemal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost
effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of respensibilities within a clear defined framework, effective
accounting procedures and adequale segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored
throughout the company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company’s
business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the
company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risks across the company. While operating
risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours o minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls,
systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors' are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the systems of internal
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial recerds may be relied on for the preparation of the financial statements,
However, any system of mternal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The directors' have reviewed the company’s cash tlaw forecast for the year 1o 31 March 2023 and, in the light of this review and

the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has access 0 adequate resources to continue in operational
exisience for the foreseeable fure.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company’s financial statements. 'he
financial statements have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their report is presented on pages 3 to 5.

The financial statements set out on pages 7 to 26, which have been prepared on the geing concern basis, were appraved by the
board of directors' and were signed on its hehalf by:

ok K

Duduzile C\yhthia Patiencc.MazibukG Atal Tantia 1
Date: May 16, 2023 Date: May 16, 2023




GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/331165/07
Annual Financial Stacements for the vear ended 31 March 2023

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1.

Review of activities
Main business and operations

The company is engaged in manufacturing and sale of railway concrete sleepers and operates principally in South
Africa.

Property, plant and equipment
There were no changes in the nature of property, plant and equipment during the year under review.

Authorised and issued share capital
There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the company during the year under review.

Directors
The directors’ of the company during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Name Nationality Change
Dwarika Prasad Tantia Indian No Change
Atul Tantia Indian No Change
Lawrence Thulani Mthethwa South African No Change
Duduzile Cynthia Patience Mazibuko South African No Change
Secretary

The secretary of the company is ER Goodman Secretarial Services CC of :

Business address 3 River Road
Bedfordview
2007
Auditors

Leze Qosthuizen and Smith Incorporation will continue in office.

Events subsequent to reporting date
All events subsequent to the date of the separate financial statements and for which the applicable financial reporting
framework requires adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

In his speech in February 2022, the Minister of Finance announced a budgeted change in the corporate income tax rate
from 28% to 27%. The new corporate income tax rate of 27% is effective for all financial year-ends commencing 1
April 2022, Therefore the applicable tax rate used in the tax rate reconciliation is 28% as this is the corporate {ax rate
still applicabie as at the end of the financial period. Deferred tax, however, is measured at tax rates {and tax [aws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date, The 27% tax rate has been “substantively enacted”
in South Africa with effect from the date of the budget speech. Therefore, deferred tax for the current year is measured
at 27%. The timing differences resulting from non-current assets and liabilities are expected to reverse in a tax period

when the new tax rate will be effective.

Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid during the year (2022: Rnil).

Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, since the directors, despite the events
described in note 27 of the annual financial statements, believe that the company will have adequate resources in place
to continue operating the business.




GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited

Registration number; 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023 2022
Notes R R
ASSETS
Non-current Asseis 39,091,905 45,736,056
Property, plant and equipment 3 34,210,886 45,736,056
Deferred tax asset 5 4,881,019 -
Current Assets 64,101,610 58,338,902
Cash and cash equivalents 8 59,504 1,259,993
Inventory 6 50,937,650 55,919,079
Trade and other receivables 7 13,104,456 1,159,830
TOTAL ASSETS 103,193,515 104,074,958
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity (7,895,432) 5,713,297
Share capital 9 50,000 50,000
Retained ecarnings (7,945,432) 5,663,297
Non-current Liabilities 80,901,664 52,636.,5%6
Loans from shareholders 4 80,901,664 47,084,499
Deferred tax liability 5 - 4,652,097
Current Liabilities 30,187,283 45,725,065
Trade and other payables 12 16,019,982 27,282,183
Dividend payable 130,000 180,000
Bank overdraft 8 13,987,301 18,262,882
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 103,193,515 104,074,958




GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2023 2022
Notes R R
Revenue 13 39,186,745 10,950,394
Cost of sales 14 (44,116,172) {15,549,431)
Gross loss (4,929,42°N) (4,599,037
Other income 17 1,202,533 545945
Administrative and other expenditure (page 28) (15,157,976} (5,068,399
Operating loss 15 (18,884,870) {9,121,491)
Finance costs 16 {4,256,976) (3,123,219)
Loss before taxation (23,141,846) (12,244,710)
Taxation 19 9,533,117 3,435,985
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (13,608,729) (8,808,725)




GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share Retained Total

capital income equity

R R R

Balance at 31 March 2021 50,000 14,472,022 14,522,022
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (8,808,725) {8,808,725)
Balance at 31 March 2022 50,000 5,663,297 5,713,297
Total comprehensive loss for the year - {13,608,729) {13,608,729)
Balance at 31 March 2023 50,000 (7,945,432) (7.895,432)

10



GPT Conerete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

2023 2022
Notes R R

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers 28,444,652 158,918,691

Cash paid to suppliers and employees (55,242,845) (19,210,540}

Cash utilised in operations 21 (26,798,193} (291,849)

Finance costs (4,256,976) {(3,123,21%)
Net cash utilised in operating activities (31,055,169} (3,415,068)
Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 2,259,166 40,000

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 3 {1,046,070) -
Nef cash generated from investing activities 1,213,096 40,000
Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of other financial liabilities - (1,656,309

Proceeds from sharcholders' loan 32,917,165 9,019,359
Net cash generated from financing activities 32,017,165 7,363,650
Net movement in eash and cash equivalents 3,075,092 3,987,982
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (17,002,889) (20,990.,871)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 8 (13,927,797) (17,002,889)

i1



GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number; 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.

i.l.

Basis of presentation and accounting policies

The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standards, and the Companies Act 71 of 2008.The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis,
and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They are presented in South African Rands.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year.

Significant judgement and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual resulis in the future could differ from these
estimates which may be material to the annual financial statements, Significant judgements include:

Financial assets measured at cost and amortised cost

The company assesses its financial assets measured at cost and amortised cost for impairment at each reporting period
date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the
company makes judgements as to whether there are observable daia indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a financial asset.

The impairment of financial assets measured at cost and amortised cost is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on
historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the
repotting period that correlate at defaults on the portfolio, These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the
portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period.

Allowance of slowing moving, damaged and obsolete inventory

An allowance for inventory to write inventory down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made
estimates of the selling price and direct cost io sell on certain inveniory items. The write down is included in the
operating profit note.

Impairment testing

The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. In addition, goodwill is only tested for impairment when there is an indicator of
impairment, Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely independent of cash
flows for each group of assets. Expecied future cash flows used to deferming the value in use of goodwill and tangible
assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change overtime. They are significantly affected by a number of
factors including production estimates, supply and demand together with e¢conomic factors such as exchange rates,
inflation, and interest,

Taxation
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many

transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
The company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such

differences will impact th income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period which such determination is made.
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Propriefary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.2,

1.3.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible item that:

# are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes;
and.

& are expected to be used during more than one period
Cost include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying ameunt of an item
of property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method to write down the cost, less estimated residual value over the
useful life of the property, plant and equipment, which is as follows:

Ifem Average useful life
Buildings 10 years

Leasehold improvements 10 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture and fittings 8 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Office equipment 8 years

Computer equipment 5 years

Laboratory equipment 8 years

Other property, plant and equipment 1 year

The residual value, depreciation method and the useful life of each asset are reviewed at each annual reporting period if
there are indicators present that there is a change from estimate, Based on the same the depreciation has been calculated.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item
and has significantly different patterns of consumption of economic benefits is depreciated separately over its useful life.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized in
profit or loss in the period.

Financial instruments

Measurement

Intial recognition and measurement-Financial instruments are recognised initially when the company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. The company classifies financial instruments, or there component parts, in
initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in aceordanee with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Subsequent measurement - Financial instrument at fair value through profit or foss are subsequently measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being included in profit or loss for the period.
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/407
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.3.

14.

Financial instruments (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value ,and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Loans to shareholders
These financial assets are classified as loans and receivables.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measuted at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. A receivable represents the companies right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditiona! (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is dve).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand that is readily convertiable to a known amount of cash and are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and subsequently measured at amorfised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Bank overdraft and borrowings
Bank overdraft and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.

Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of
current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. Current tax
assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the tax authorities, using the tax rates(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and lisbilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable tempory differences, except to the extent that the deferred liability
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting profit nor taxable profit(tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets an liabilties are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting peried.

In his speech in February 2022, the Minister of Finance announced a budgeted change in the corporate income tax rate
from 28% to 27%. The new corporate income tax rate of 27% is effective for all financial year-ends commencing 1 April
2022. Therefore the applicable tax rate used in the tax rate reconciliation is 28% as this is the corporate tax rate still
applicable as at the end of the financial period. Deferred tax, however, is measured at tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacied by the balance sheet date. The 27% tax rate has been “substantively enacted” in
South Africa with effect from the date of the budget speech. Therefore, deferred tax for the current year is measured at
27%. The timing differences resulting from non-current assets and liabilities ar¢ expected to reverse in a tax period when
the new tax rate will be effective.
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GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limited
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.4,

1.5,

Taxation (continned)

Tax expenses

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited direcily to equity if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.

Leases

At inception of a contract, the company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the company
assesses whether:

The contract involves the use of an identified asset- this may be specified explicity, and should be physically distinct or
represent substantially all of the capacity of a physically distinct asset, if the supplier has a substantive substitution right,
then the asset is not identified;

The company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The company has this right when it has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what purpose the asset is used. In rare cases whete the decision
about how and for what purpose the asset is used is predetermined, the company has the right to direct the use of the
asset if either:

The company has the right to operate the asset; or

The company designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose it will be used.

As a Lessee

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use
asset is periodically reduced hy impairment losses. If any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discontinued using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, and the
company's incremental borrowings rate, Generally, the company use its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as the
commencement date.

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and lease payments in an optional renewal period if the
company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early fermination of a lease unless the
company is rcasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate
of the ameunt expected to be payable under a residval value guarantee, or if the company changes its assessment of
whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and selling price less costs to complete and sell, on the weighted average
cost basis. The cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an ¢xpense in the period the
write-down of loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in the
net realisable value, are recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Impairment of assefs
The company assesses at each reporting period date whether there is any indicatjon that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to s¢ll and its value
in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss is recognised for cash-generating units if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. The impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets of the unit in the
following order:

o first, to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit and
« then, to the other assets of the vnit, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other than
goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognized at their fair value in profit or loss where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the company has complied with ali attached conditions. Grants received where the entity
has yet to comply with all attached conditions are recognised as a liability (and included in deferred income within trade
and other payables) and released o income when all attached conditions have heen complied with. Government grants
received are included in "other income' in profit or loss.

16



GPT Concrete Products South Africa (Proprietary) Limiced
Registration number: 2007/031165/07
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9.

1.10.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers

The company is in the business of providing railway concrete sleepers. Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of the goods are transferred io the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The company has generally concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the goods before transferring them to the
customer.

Sale of railway concrete sleepers

Revenue from sale of railway concrete sleepers is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the railway concrete sleepers. The normal credit terim is 30 to 60 days upon
delivery.

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In determining
the transaction price for the sale of railway concrete slecpers, the company considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to
the customer (if any).

Significant financing component

The company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing component
if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or service to the customer
and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended use. The amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:

Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset less any temporary
investment of those borrowings.

Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally borrowed for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
® Expenditure for the asset has occurred.
® Borrowing cost has been incurred.

e Activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Capitalisation is suspended during extended pericds in which active development is interrupted.

Capitalisation ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.11.

1.12.

Translations of foreign currencies

Foreign currency translations

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in Rands, by applying to the foreign currency amount
the spot exchange rale belween the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period:

- foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

- non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction; and

- non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in A foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

Cost of sales

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised, The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss oceurs, The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.

21

22

23

.4

3

New and revised standards
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following IFRSs were adopted:

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current {Amendments to [AS 1) (Effective annual reporting perieds beginning on or
after I January 2023)

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the statement of
financial position, debt and other lisbilities with an uncertain settlement daie should be classified as current (due to be settled within one year)
0T ROA-CUrTent.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-carrent — Deferral of Effective Date (Amendment te TAS 1)

The amendment defers the effective date of the January 2020 amendments by one year, so that entities would be required to apply the
amendment for anoual perieds beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice statement 2) (Effective annual reporting periods
beginning on or after | January 2013)

The amendments require that an entitly discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies. Further
amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. Examples of when an accounting policy is likely to be material
are added. To support the amendment, the Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and demonstrate the application of the

‘four-step materilaity process' desribed in ¥FRS Practice Statement 2.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendmenis to IAS 8) (Effective annual reporting periods beginning on or after I January

2023)
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new

definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject 10 measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop
accounting egtimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in 2 way that involves measurement
uncertainty. The amendments clarify that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or new developments is not the
correction of an error.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12)

The amendments clarify that the initial recognition exemption does not apply to transactions in which equal amounts of deductibie and taxable
temporary differences arise on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

2023 2022
Cost Accumulated Cartying Cost Accumulated Cartying
Depreciation value Depreciation value
Building 25,280,500 (21,850,204) 3,430,296 25,280,500 (20,351.267) 4,925,233
Leasehold improvements 13,611,177 {8,166,707) 5,444,470 13,611,177 {6,805,589) 6,805,588
Plant and machinery 129479,503  (104,326,332) 25,153,171 130,197,154 {96,509,398) 33,687,756
Furniture and fixtures 201,160 (183,498) 17,662 201,160 {181,59) 19,561
Motor vehicles 765,100 (700,886) 64,214 038,390 {761,676) 176,714
Office equipment 253,311 (231,294) 22,017 253,311 {228,950) 24,361
1T equipment 101,371 {89.458) 11,913 101,371 (81,253) 20,118
Laboratory equipment 306,869 (289,724) 17,145 300,869 {281,545} 25,324
Other property,plant and
equipment 2,513,577 (2.463,579) 49,998 2,461,687 {2,414,286) 47,401
172,512,568  (138,301,682) 34,210,886 173,151,619 (127,615,563) 45,736,056
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3. Property, plant and equipment{continued)

Reconciliation of property, ptant and equipment -~ 2023

Opening Closing
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation balance
Building 4,929,233 - - (1,498,937} 3,430,296
Leasehold improvements 6,805,588 - - (1,361,118) 5,444 470
Plant and machinery 33,687,756 994,181 (1,062,320} (8,466,446) 25,153,171
Fumiture and fixtures 19,561 - - (1,899) 17,662
Motor vehicles 176,714 - (8,664) {(103,836) 64,214
Office equipment 24,361 - - {2,344) 22017
Computer equipiment 20,118 - - {8,205) 11,913
Laboratory equipment 25,324 - - {8,179 17,145
Other property,plant and equipment 47,401 51,889 - (49,292) 49,908
45,736,056 1,046,070 {1,070,984) (11,500,256} 34,210,886
Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2022
Opening Closing
balance Additions Disposals Depreciation balance
Building 6,428,172 - - (1,498,939) 4,929,233
Leasehold improvements 8,166,706 - - {1,361,118) 6,805,588
Plant and machinery 42,145921 - - (8,458,165) 33,687,756
Fumiture and fixtures 23,526 - - (3,965) 19,561
Motor vehicles 322,907 - (30,008} (116,185) 176,714
Office equipment 27,877 - - {3,518) 24,361
Computer equipment 28,323 - - (8,205) 20,118
Laboratory equipiment 33,502 - - {8,178) 25,324
Other property,plant and equipment 49,900 - - {2,499) 47,401
57,226,834 - (30,008) (11,460,770} 45,736,056

A register containing the infonmation regunired by paragraph 22(3) of Schedule 4 of the Companies Act is available for inspection at the

registered office of the company.

In 2016, the Company expanded its production facility at Ladysmith and has estimated the remaining useful life of the assets at 8 years
from April 2015. For each of the next 7 years of useful life of the factory the depreciation expense will be recognized evenly every year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023 2022
R R
4. Loans from shareholders
GPT Investments Private Limited - loan 1 42,198,833 40,367,103
GPT Infraprojects Limited 11,355,446 7,617,396
GPT Investments Private Limited - loan 2 27,347,385 -
80.901.664 47,984,499

The loan with GPT Investments Private Limited (loan 1) is unsecured and interest bearing. Interest on this loan is charged at 7% (2022:
%) . The loan is repayable once the loan from State Bank of India has been repaid.

The loan with GPT Infraprojects Limited is unsecured and interest bearing. Interest on this loan is charged at prime interest rate which
fluctuates during the yeat. At yvear end the rate was 10.75% (2022 - 7.75%). This loan is repayable on demand. The company has agreed
to assist the entity by subordinating their loan, in favour of other creditors of the entity until such time the assets fairly valued exceeds its
liabilities.

The loan with GPT Investments Private Limited (loan 2) is unsecured and interest free. This loan is repayable on demand.

5. Deferred tax asset / (Hability)

Accelerated capital allowances for tax purposes (7,185,753} (13,299,914)

Unrealised foreign exchange differences
Tax on assessed loss

Reconciliation of deferred tax asset / (liability)

1,317423 53,312
10,749,349 8,594,504

4,881,019 {4,632.097)

At beginning of the year (4,652,097) (8,088,082}
Originating temporary difference on tangible fixed assets 6,114,161 (1,116,678)
Unrealised foreign exchange differences 1,264,110 2,264
Originating temporary difference on bonus provision - (23,281
{Unutilisation)/ increase in assessed loss 2,154,845 4,573,679

4,881,019 (4,652,097)

6. Inventories

Raw material components 374,153 1,660,611
Finished goods 50,416,945 54,154,888
Direct consumables 146,552 103,580
50,937,650 £5,919.079
7. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables 11,780,229 35,029
Deposits 414,200 14,200
Estate late - R A Mthethwa 906,001 900,001
Staff advances 8,331 210,600
Other receivables 1,695 -

13,104,456 1,159,830

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2023 R Nit {2022: R

Nil} were past due but not impaired.

The ageing of the trade receivables is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 9,362,928 35,029
30-60 days but not impaired 2,417,301 -
61-90 days but not impaired - -
91-120 days but not impaired - -
More than 120 days but not impaired - -

Trade and other receivables impaired:

As of 31 March 2023, no trade and other receivables were impaired and provided for.

11,780,229 35,029
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NOTES TO TEE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023 2022
R R

8. Cash and cash equivalents (13,927,797) (17,002,859)
Cash on hand 128 -
Bank balance 59,376 1,256,993
Bank overdraft (13,987.301) (18,262,882)
Current assets 59,504 1,259,994
Current liabilities {13,987,301) {18,262,882)

{13.927.797) {17.002.889

An overdraft facility of R21 million and bank Limit guarantee of R2 miltion is provided by State Bank of India SA and is secured by:

e First charge way of General Notarial Bond over all stocks of the company including goods in transit.
» An unrestricted first cession on all present and future book-debts due to or to become due to the Company i favour of the Bank.

¢ Corporate guaraniee of GPT Infraprojects Limited.

¢ Perscnal guarantee of Dwarika Prasad Tantia and Al Tantia.
® Third Party guarantee of Shree Gopal Tantia and Vaibhav Tantia,
» Cession on Sharcholders' Loan of R40.37 Million from GPT Investment Pvt Limited.

9.  Share capital

Authorised
50 000 ordinary shares of R1-00 each 50,000 50,000
Issued
50 000 ordinary shares of R1-00 each 50,000 50,000
10.  Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2023
Opening  Additions / (reversals)  Unutilised during Total
balance the year
Bonus provision - - - .
Reconciliation of provisions - 2622
Opening  Additions / (reversals)  Unutilised during Total
balance the year
Bonus provision 83,146 {83,146 - -
83,146 (83,14%) - -
11. Financial liabilities by category
The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below:
Loan from shareholders 80,501,664 47,984,499
Trade and other payables 16,019,982 27,282,183
Cash and cash equivalents - bank overdraft 13,987,301 18,262,882
110.908.947 93,529,564
12, Trade and other payables
Trade payables 14,136,502 26,367,756
VAT payables 704,567 124,283
Accrued expense 47,049 1,548
Other payables - 13,374
Withholding tax 1,071,864 775,222
16,019,982 ___ 27282183
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023 2022
R R
13. Revenue
From the sale of goods 39,186,745 10,950,394
14, Cost of sales
Cost of goods sold 23,085,974 8,714,904
Write down of inventories to net realisable value 4,192,722 (8,314,455}
Employee costs 2,018,171 847,352
Water and electricity 122,614 610,679
Repairs and maintenance 089,587 404,150
Consumabies and sundries 409,114 80,386
Motor vehicle fuel and oil 430,114 123,721
Depreciation 11,326,502 11,318,222
Insurance 134,616 151,807
Rental equiptnent 1,406,758 1,612,665

15. Operating loss

Operating loss for the year is stated after accounting for the following:

Loss/{profit) on exchange difference
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment
Employee cost - administration

Employee cost - cost of sales

Auditor's remuneration

16. Finance costs
GPT Investments Private Limited
GPT Infraprojects Limited
Trade and other payables
State Bank of India

17. Other income
Discount recefved
Insurance claims
Miscellanzous income
Profit on asset disposal
Profit on foreign exchange
SETA grant

19. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense

S A normal tax
Current tax expense
Deferred tax (note 5)

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.
Loss before tax
Tax thereon of 28%
Change in tax rate - deferred tax temporary differences

Other tax allowances, non-deductible expenses and exempt income

Overprovision of deferred tax liability in prior year

44,116,172

4,688,943
11,500,257
1,777,581
2,018,171
185,000

2,035,255
931,167
9,422
1,281,132

15.549.431

(448,209)
11,460,769
1,401,941
847,352
126,612

1,557,735
130,440
2,769
1432,275

4,256,976

3,123,219

565 8,913
13,574 57,775
. 13,589
1,188,181 9,992
- 448,209
213 7,467
1,202,533 545 045
(9,533,117 (3,435,985)
(9,533,117) (3,435 985)
(23,141 846)  (12,244,710)
(6,479,717 (3,428,519)
180,777 -
(30,617) (7,466)
(3,203,560 -
(9,533,117 (3,435,985)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023 2022
R R
20.  Auditor's remuneration
Fees 185,000 126,612
21. Cash utilised in operations
Loss before taxation (23,141,846) (12,244,710)
Adfustments for:
Depreciation 11,500,256 11,460,770
Finance Costs 4,256,976 3,123,219
Profit on asset disposai (1,188,181} (2,992)
Movements in provisions - {83,146}
Changes in working capital:
Movement in inventories 4081429 {1,536,407)
Movement in trade and other receivables {11,944,626) 7,422,351
Movement in trade and other payables {11,262,201) (8,423,934)

26,798,193) _____ (291.840)

22. Dividends paid

Dividends payable at beginning of the year { 180,000} (180,000)
Dividends declared - -
Balance at end of the year 180,000 180,000

23. Related Parties

Relationships
Shareholders GPT Infraprojects Limited (India)
GPT Investments Private Limited (Mauritius)
RA Mihethwa {Estate Late)
GPT Umnambithi Community Trust
DE Peter
A Tantia
Directors DP Tantia
A Tantia
LT Mthethwa
DCP Mazibuko
Associate companies GPT TransNamib Concrete (Pty) Limited
Related party balances
Loan accounts - Owing (to) related parties
GPT Investments Private Limited (loan 1) (42,198.833) {40,367.103)
GPT Infraprojects Limited (11,355.446) {7,017,390)
GPT Investments Private Limited {loan 2) (27,347,385) -

Amounts included in Trade receivables (Trade payable) regarding related parties

GPT Investments Private Limited - (20,090,834)
RA Mthethwa {Estate Late) 900,001 900,001
GPT TransNamib Concrete (Pty) Limited (2,924,002) -

Related party transactions

Interest paid to related parties
GPT lnvestments Private Limited 2,035,255 1,557,735
GPT Infraprojects Limited 531,167 130,440
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2023 2022
R R
23. Related Parties {continued)
Consulting fees paid to related parties
GPT Investments Private Limited 5,569.412 2,562,340
Sales to related parties
GPT TransNamib Concrete (Pty) Limited 141,950 125,250
Al the above transactions are at arms length and comparable marke! rates.
Salariés paid to related parties
LT Mthethwa 61,723 51,075
DCP Mazibuko 61,723 51,675
24, Directors’ emolumenis
Non-Executive
LT Mthethwa 61,723 51,075
DCP Mazibuko 61,723 51,075
123,446 102,150

25. Risk management
The company's activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk - The company’s interest rate risk arises from Jong term borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
coinpany to cash flow interest rate risk. During 2023 and 2022 the company’s borrowings at variable rates were denominated in the Rand.

The company analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis.
Credit risk - Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The company only deposits cash with major
banks with high quality credit standings and limits exposure to any one counter-party.

Foreign exchange risk - The company does not hedge foreign exchange fluctuations.
Exchange rates used for converting of foreign items were USD 1:R 17.8275 (2022: R14.4851). The source of these rates is the interbank
Foreign currency exposure at the end of the reporting period.

Liabilities
GPT Investments {Pvt) Limited 2023: $ 1 534 000 (2022: § 1 387 00() 27,347,385 20,090,834

Liquidity risk - The company's risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The company manages
liguidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities.

At 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year Between T and Over 5 years
Borrowings 13,987,301 80,901,604 -
Trade and other payables 16,019,982 - -
30,007,283 80,901,664 -
At 31 March 2022 Less than 1 year Between 1 and Over 5 years
Borrowings 18,262,882 47,984 499 -
Trade and other payables 27,282,183 - =
45,545,065 47,984,499 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2023 2022

26.

7.

28,

Lease renewal

Lease renewal

The company leases its manufacturing premises located in Danskraal, Ladysmith, KZN from Transnet Freight Rail (Transnet SOC Ltd).
The lease term ended on 29 February 2020, and is at present continuing on a month fo month basis on the terms and conditions of the
expired lease. Transnet Freight Rail are presently considering the renewal of the lease. Since the company has invested significantly in
manufacturing operations on the leased property, should the lease not be renewed, an impairment of property, plant and equipment would
need to be considered.

The Directors, however, have no reason to believe that the lease will not be renewed given that Transnet Freight Rail allows the company
to tender for future contracts which the directors are of the opinien will be awarded 1o the company. The lease has been consistently
renewed in the past.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

The factory was shut-cown for the period April 2022 till August 2022 due to the company not receiving sufficient tenders from Transnet
Freight Rail the primary customer of the company. Transnet Freight Rail has adopted a tendering process wherein there will be limited
RF( for a period of 12 months commencing from April every year. The Company has responded to the RFQ of Transnet in April 2023 for
supply of sleepers over a §2-month period and has been technicaily qualified for the same and subinitted its financial bid in May 2023.
The same is under consideration by Transnet Freight Rail and an adjudication with the National Treasury for approval. Apart from this the
company also tenders for emergency requirements of Transnet Freight Rail as and when required, given the [ocational advantage of the
company’s operations. The company is also in talks with Prasa to meet their requirement of concrete sleepers. As at reporting date, the
liabilities of the company exceeded its assets. Subsequent to reporting date the factory had 1o be shut down again due to insufficient
tenders received, Therefore, the company remaining a going concern is largely dependent on them acquiring the above-mentioned tenders
which the directors have no reason to believe will not be awarded given the past 15 years relationship between the company and Transnet
Freight Rail. Therefore, the directors are of the opinion that these contracts will be awarded to the company and the annual financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Events after reporting date

In his speech in February 2022, the Minister of Finance announced a budgeted change in the corporate income tax rate from 28% to 27%.
The new corporate income tax rate of 27% is effective for all financial year-ends commencing 1 April 2022, Therefore the applicable tax
rate used in the tax rate reconciliation is 28% as this is the corporate tax rate still applicable as at the end of the financial period, Deferred
tax, however, is measured at tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The 27% tax
rate has been “substantively enacted” in South Africa with effect from the date of the budget speech, Therefore, deferred tax for the current
vear is measured at 27% . The timing differences resulting from non-current assets and liabilities are expected fo reverse in a tax period
when the new tax rate will be effective.
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT

2023 2022
R R
Revenue 39,186,745 10,950,394
Cast of sales {44,116,172) {15,549,431)
Opening stock (55,019,079} (54,382,672)
Purchases (39,134,743} (17,085,838)
Closing stock 50,937,650 55,919,079
Gross loss (4,929,427} (4,599,037)
Other income 1,202,533 545,945

Operating expenses
Administrative and other expenditure (page 28)

Operating loss

Finance costs

Loss before iax

Taxation

TOTAL COMFREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR

(15,157.976)

(5,068,399)

(18,884,870)  (9,121,491)
(4,256,976)  (3,123,219)
(23,141,846)  (12,244,710)
9,533,117 3,435,985
(13,608,729)  (8,808,725)
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

2023 2022
R R
Administrative and other expenditure 15,157,976 5,068,399
Accounting fees 68,780 51,185
Auditor's remuneration 185,000 126,612
Bank charges 42,089 65,427
Cleaning 19,261 26,681
Computer expenses 18,113 13,454
Consulting fees 5,628,909 2,562,839
Depreciation, amortisation and impairments 173,755 142,548
Directors' fees 123,446 102,150
Employee costs 1,654,135 1,299,791
Entertainment expenses 22,011 -
General expenses {5,726) 16,035
Freight and clearing 275,096 1,648
Insurance 31,176 9,458
Interest and penalties SARS 19,120 -
Loss on foreign exchange 4 688,943 -
Motor vehicle expenses 86,279 85,649
Postage 1,192 11,592
Printing and stationery 13,519 8,086
Repairs and maintenance 3,880 16,089
Secretarial fees 25,426 25916
Staff welfare 47,829 25,010
Security 424,537 374,342
Subscriptions - 795
Telephone and fax 47,294 59,798
Travelling 650 1,850
Transport and freight 1,557,262 41,444
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DETAILED INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

2023 2022
R R
Cost of sales 44,116,172 15,549,430
Cost of goods sold 23,085,974 8,714,904
Write down of inventories to net realisable value 4,192,722 (8,314,455)
Direct costs allocated to COS:
Employee costs 2,018,171 847,352
Water and electricity 122,614 610,679
Repairs and maintenance 989 587 404,150
Consuinables and sundries 409,114 80,385
Motor vehicle fugl and oil 430,114 123,721
Depreciation 11,326,502 11,318,222
Insurance 134,616 151,807
Rental factory and equipment 1,406,738 1,612,665
Finance costs 4,256,976 3,123,219
GPT Investmenis Private Limited 2,035,255 1,557,735
GPT Infraprojects Limited 931,167 130,440
Interest on suppliers 0,422 2,769
State Bank of India 1,281,132 1,432,275
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